
J«N06'2lpri 2^54 RCUD

•/

Lori A. Sbibinetic

Connissieaer

LUa M. Morris

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 0^1
605-271-4501 1-SOO<852^S Ext 4501

Fax:605-271-4827 TOO Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

December 9, 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to enter Into Sole Source amendments to existing contracts for the provision of
Community Collaboration services by providing parental assistance programming to the
Winnipesauke and Manchester communities to reduce child maltreatment and the risk of children
entering foster care, by increasing the total price limitation by $1,200,000 from $1,928,266 to
$3,128,266 and by extending the completion dates from June 30,2021, to June 30,2023, effective
upon Governor and Council approval. 70% General Funds arid 30% Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Govemor and Council on July 31, 2019 (Item
#18). and most recently amended with Govemor and Council approval on August 26, 2020, item
#19.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Amoskeag
Community

Health

157274-

B001
Manchester $976,341 $600,000 $1,576,341

Lakes Region
Community
Services

177251-

B002
Laconia $951,925 $600,000 $1,551,925

Total: $1,928,266 $1,200,000 $3,128,266

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because a previous amendment increased funding by more
than ten percent (10%) of the total contract price limitation. The previous amendment added
additional funding for the Contractors to design evidence-based programs.

T/m Department of Health and Human Seruices' Minion is to join communities and famUies
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Horxtrable Council
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The purpose of this request is to extend the agreements and to add reporting
requirements. The two Community Collaborations contracts are currently bringing various
agencies and representatives together to create an upstream approach for the prevention of child
maltreatment services. These contracts are focused on providing services to early childhood
families and creating system level changes to ensure a more coordinated service, delivery for
families. The Contractors use community and state networks to connect families to the ser>^ces
they need to support self-sufficiency and economic stability.

Approximately 400 families will be sen/ed from July 31, 2019, through June 30, 2023.

The Contractors will continue to support the development of collaborative educational
programs and professional partnerships within the targeted communities. These programs and
partnerships include designing prevention programs, parent education, and programs that offer
alternatives to out-of-home placement for children. Through these contracts, the Department will
expand access to community-based services for high-risk families, and provide prevention
programming focused on strengthening and preserving families. The Contractors will provide
additional reporting, per federal regulatory requirements, which includes quality revievys on the
populations being served. The purpose of this additional reporting is to evaluate the services
provided and to adjust delivery accordingly to best meet the needs of families.

The following performance measures will be used to measure the effectiveness of the
contracts:

•  Every six (6) months, 90% of Community Implementation Teams (CIT) membership will
participate in Boundary Spanning Leadership (BSL) training workshops and evaluation
activities.

•  Every six (6) months, 90% of CIT membership will participate in evaluation baseline and
measurement studies such as surveys focus groups and/or in-depth intenriews, as
appropriate to project activities.

CIT teams shall attend 90% of coaching sessions.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Section 2. Subsection 2.1 of the original contracts, the parties
have the option to extend the agreements for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and
Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for two (2) of the two
(2) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request. New Hampshire
children and their families may not receive prevention activities vyithin the targeted communities
identified as needing the greatest prevention supports and services.

Area served: Manchester and Winnipesauke Public Health Region.

Source of Funds: 70% General Funds and 30% Federal Funds.

ully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

COMMUNITY COLLABORATION

SPY 22-23 CONTRACT RENEWAL

05-95-042-421010-2958 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: HUMAN

SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD-FAMILY SERVICES (100% GENERAL FUNDS)

Fiscal

Yaor

Class/

Account Class Title Job Number Federal General

Current Modified

Gudget

Increased

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2020

645-504004 Ganaral Funds for

Other

42105746 $400,000.00 $400,000.00 $0.00 $400,000.00

SFY 2021

645-504004 General Funds lor

Other

42105746 $300,000.00 $300,000.00 $0.00 $300,000.00

Subtotal $700,000.00 $0.00 $700,000.00

2. Lakas Roolon Community Sarvicas. VandOf 1 177251-B002

FIscol

Yaar

Class/

Account Class Title Job Number Federal General

Current Modified

Gudget

Increased

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2020

645-504004 General Funds lor

Other

42105746 $400,000.00 $400,000.00 $0.00

$400,000.00

SFY 2021

645-504004 General Funds lor

Other

42105746 $300,000.00 $300,000.00 $0.00
$300,000.00

Subtotal $700,000.00 $0.00 $700,000.00

TOTAL 2959 AU: $1,400,000.00 $0.00 $1,400,000.00

OS.g5.9Ot

DIVISON

1. Amokea

0-902010-7047 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

OF PUBLIC HEALTH, COMMUNTIY COLLABORATION 100% GENERAL FUNDS
0 Haattti! Vendor • 157274-6001

Fiscal

Yaar

Class /

Account Class Title Job Number Federal General

Current Modified

Gudget

Increased

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

SFY 2022

102-500731 Contracts for Program

Services

T8D $225,000.00 $0.00 $225,000.00 $225,000.00

SFY 2023

102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

TED $225,000.00 $0.00 $225,000.00 $225,000.00

Subtotal $450,000.00 $450,000.00

2. Lakss RsfllonCommunlty Sarvices. Vsndor# 177251-B002

Fiscal

Yaar

Class/

Account Class Title Job Number Federal General

Current Modified

Gudget

Increased

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Gudget

SFY2022

102-500731 Contracts Idr Program
Senrices

T6D

$225,000.00 $0.00 $225,000.00 $225,000.00

SFY2023

102-500731 Contracts Ibr Program
Services

TSD

$225,000.00 $0.00 $225,000.00 $225,000.00

Subtotal $450,000.00 $450,000.00

Total $0.00 $900,000.00 $900,000.00

05-95.9090-902010-7047 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISON OF PUBLIC HEALTH, COMMUNTIY COLLABORATION 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

1. Amokaag Health, Vendor 1 157274-6001

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account Class Title Job Number Federal General

Current Modifled

Gudget

Jncreased
(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Gudget

SFY 2020

102-500731 Contracts lor Program
Services

90070470 S100.000.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

SFY 2021

102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

90070470 $176,341.00 $176,341,00 $0.00 $176,341.00

SFY 2022

102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

90070470 $75,000.00 $0.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00

SFY 2023

102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

90070470 $75,000.00 $0.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00

Subtotal $276,341.00 $150,000.00 $426,341.00

2. Lakas Raoion Community Sarvicas, Vendor § 177251-6002

Fiscal

Yaar

Class /

Account Class Title Job Number Federal General

Current Modified

Gudget

Increased

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Modified

Gudget

SFY 2020

102-600731 Contractsfor Program

Services

90070470 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $0.00
$100,000.00

SFY 2021
102-500731 Contracts for Program

Services

90070470 $151,925.00 $151,925.00 $0.00
$151,925.00

SFY 2022

102-500731 Contracts for Program

Services

90070470

$75,000.00 $0.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00

SFY 2023
102-500731 Contracts lor Program

Services

90070470

$75,000.00 $0.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00

Subtotal $251,925.00 $150,000.00 $401,925.00

TOTAL 7047 AU: $526,266.00 $300,000.00 $928,266.00



I I I I \Onnd Total: \ SI.92e.2$6.00\SI.200,000.00 \ t3.128.266.00\



DocuSign Envelope ID: 079FDD29-FD98-4820-9AB5-7A97479B3C52

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families Contract

This 2"^ Amendment to the Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Amoskeag
Health (formerly Manchester Community Health Center), (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a
nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 145 Hollis Street, Manchester, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 31, 2019, (Item #18), as amended on August 26, 2020, (Item #19), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and In
consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2023.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,576,341.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services Section 3 Data Tracking, to read:

3. Reporting Requirements and Data Entry

3.1. The Contractor shall, for the purposes of program evaluation and federal reporting,
enter personally identifiable health data for all program participants into the
QuickBase data system. The Protective Factors Surveys Online Data System
(PFSODS) will also be used to collect parent surveys.

3.2 The Contractor shall maintain and collect data from the Outcome Tracking System,
QuickBase. the Contractor shall collect the following:

3.2.1. Parent Data:

3.2.1.1 First, Last Name

3.2.1.2 DOB;

3.2.1.3. Medicaid ID;

3.2.1.4. Address;

3.2.1.5. Phone;

3.2.1.6. Town/City;

3.2.1.8. " State;

3.2.1.9. Zip Code;

3.2.1.10. Email; , ds
1

3.2.1.11. Other Languages Spoken;

Amoskeag Health Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

RFP-2019-DPHS-23-COMMU-02-A02 Page 1 of 7 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID; 079FDD29-FD98-4820-9AB5-7A97479B3C52

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

3.2.1.12. Parent Education Status;

3.2.1.13. Sex;

3.2.1.14. Ethnicity;

3.2.1.15. Race;

3.2.1.16. Marital Status;

3.2.1.17. Household composition;

3.2.1.18. Military Family;

3.2.1.19. Disability status;

3.2.1.20. Employment status;

3.2.1.21. Health insurance status; .

3.2.1.22. Housing type;

3.2.1.23. Transportation;

3.2.1.24. Public Assistance;

3.2.1.25. Telecommunications / Internet;

3.2.1.26. Preferred language

3.2.2. Child Data:

3.2.2.1. First, Last;

3.2.2.2. DOB / Age in Years;

3.2.2.3. Child Primarily Lives With & Relationship to Child;

3.2.2.4. Child Preferred Language;

3.2.3. All encounters captured in the QuickBase data system with the family
members which shall include but not limited to:

3.2.3.1. Types of services and service dates.

3.2.3.2. Dates and types of supports provided to the family such as: parent
education classes, support groups, home visits, virtual visits, and access to
concrete supports.

3.2.4. All service referrals captured within the QuickBase data system to partner
agencies which include:

3.2.4.1. Date of referral.

3.2.4.2. Purpose of referral.

3.2.4.3. Name of agency referred to.

3.3. The Contractor shall obtain parental release/authorization to share Name, DOB and
statistical information with the Department and the contractor will share the following
data with the Department:

3.3.1. Parent Data:

3.3.1.1 First, Last name

3.3.1.2 DOB;

3.3.1.3. Medicaid ID;

Amoskeaa Health Amendment #2 Contractor Initialsy  11/^4/2020
RFP-2019-DPHS-23-COMMU-02-A02 Page 2 of 7 Date

■a



DocuSign Envelope ID: 079FDD29-FD98-4820-9AB5-7A9747983C52

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

3.3.1.4 QuickBase Family and Participant ID;

^  3.3.1.5. Town/City/ Zip Code; 3.3.1.6. Other Languages Spoken;

3.3.1.7. Parent Education Status;

3.3.1.8. Sex;

3.3.1.9. Ethnicity:

3.3.1.10. Race;

3.3.1.11. Marital Status:

3.3.1.12. Household composition;

3.3.1.13. Military Family;

3.3.1.14. Disability status;

3.3.1.15. Employment status;

3.3.1.16. Health insurance status;

3.3.1.17. Housing type;

3.3.1.18. Transportation;
\

3.3.1.19. Public Assistance;

3.3.1.20. Telecommunications/ Internet;

3.3.1.21. Preferred language

3.3.1.22. PFS-2 Concrete Supports Subscale Parental Survey

3.3.1.23. PFS-2 Retrospective (Pre/Post) Parental Survey

3.3.2. Child Data:

3.3.2.1. First, Last Name
I

3.3.2.2. DOB / Age in Years ;

3.3.2.3. QuickBase Family and Participant ID;

3.3.2.4. Child Primarily Lives With & Relationship to Child;

3.3.2.5. Child Preferred Language;

3.3.3. All encounters captured within the QuickBase data system provided with the
family members, which shall Include, but Is not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Type of contact with the family and Date.

3.3.3.2. Type of services and supports and Date provided to the family,
which includes:

3.3.3.2.1. Parent support groups, parent education classes;

3.3.3.2.2. Individual crisis support and educational topics
reviewed during contact with the family such as injury prevention,
nurturing and attachment, etc; and

3.3.3.2.3 Concrete supports provided including facilitating
access to EITC and economic resources.

3.3.4. All service referrals captured in the QuickBase data system, wtvcho^all
include, but Is not limited to:

Amoskeag Health Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

RFP-2019-DPHS-23-COMMU-02-A02 Page 3 of 7 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 079FDD29-FD98-4820-9AB5.7A97479B3C52

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

3.3.4.1. Referral date.

3.3.4.2. Referral purpose.

3.3.4.3. Name of agency referred to.

3.4. The Contractor shall utilize the PFSODS to collect parental surveys which are used
as a tool to measure increases in parental protective factors as well as to determine
immediate needs and inform service planning during the family intake process.

3.5. The Contractor shall provide to the Department at least quarterly new Protective
Factors Sun/eys completed for each parent enrolled in the Community
Collaborations program. The PFS-2 Concrete Supports Subscale Survey shall be
completed at the intake stage to determine immediate needs and assist in initial
service planning with the family. The PFS-2 Retrospective Survey shall be
completed at 6 months and can be repeated and/or after at least 12 hours of services
received by the family. The sun/eys sent to the Department shall include:

3.3.1. PFS-2 Concrete Supports Subscale sun/ey; and

3.3.2. PFS-2, Retrospective (pre/post) Survey

3.6. The Contractor shall ensure the Outcome Tracking System is HIPPA Compliant with
42 CFR Part 2 in the event that any of the information is either a Part 2 record or
information, and compliant with all applicable state confidentiality laws, and is utilized
to capture local performance metrics consistent with targeted prevention efforts
determined through the pre-implementation planning period of Community
Collaborations. The Contractor shall:

3.6.1. Participate in Plan Do Study Act -Revise (PDSA-R) cycles to increase
saturation and scale of evidence-based prevention practice.

3.6.2. Use the Predict, Align, Prevent data modeling to inform targeted service
innovations within the contractor community which should include
engagement with state, PAP program staff, community Implementation
team members and update to the evaluator on what those planned
innovations are as outlined in the Plan Do Study Act cycles.

3.6.3. Disseminate and review data at regular intervals with community partners
for continuous quality improvement efforts, PDSA-R cycles, and data-based
decision efforts.

3.6.4. Track local data and monitor process and outcome indicators Involved in the
Boundary Spanning Leadership (SSL) framework and Community
Implementation Team (GIT) implementation.

3.6.5. Invite the evaluation team to attend GIT meetings in order to provide training
on the importance of the evaluation, specifics on data collection and
reporting.

3.6.6. Engage in pre-implementation trainings such as: (1) QuickSase data
platform, (2) Protective Factors Survey-2 tool administration and (3)
Onboarding Staff to data collection relating to Data Collection and family
engagement in the intake process.

3.7. The Contractor shall work collaboratiyely under the direction of the Department, with
the State-identified Evaluation Contractor. This work shall include, but is not limited

to:
y—OS

3.7.1. Facilitating cross-system data definition processes and managing a ̂ fed-
outcomes defining process and outcomes tracking system whton shall

Amoskeag Health Amendment #2 Contractor Initials j^j^^ 24/ 202u
RFP-2019-DPHS-23-COMMU-02-A02 Page 4 of 7 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 079FbO29-FD96-4820-9AB5-7A97479B3C52

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Famiiies

include, but is not limited to:

3.7.1.1. Identification of indicators of success to inform shared

outcome metrics within GIT.

3.7.1.2. Personal characteristics, challenges, barriers, and
experiences of parent and community organization
participants.-

3.7.1.3. Sharing of pre-defined regional data definitions.

3.7.1.4. Establishment of shared measures of success.

3.7.1.5. Establishment and implementation of data collection, data
sharing agreements, security, and monitoring procedures
standards, consistent with all state and federal laws and
regulations relating to confidentiality, privacy and information
security.

3.7.1.6. Coordination of local data tracking and monitoring of process
and outcome indicators involved in the Boundary Spanning
Leadership (BSL) method and GIT implementation."

3.7.1.7. Participation in outcomes tracking system training and
technical assistance.

3.7.1.8. Submission of Outcome Tracking System data at regularly
defined intervals for purpose of the program evaluation.

3.8.2. Explore, incorporate and document concepts, methods, population and
performance-based data and tools that make cross-sectoral work more
successful and increase the value of collective impact.

3.9.3. Gonduct a needs assessment/environmental scan of: services, GIT child-
abuse neglect prevention focus evidence-based practices, training and
technical assistance needs of community providers.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services Section 4 Reporting, Subsection 4.1, to read:

4.1 The Gontractor shall submit annual and interim reports on process and outcome measures
for each area under study for quality improvement and recommendations.

5. Exhibit B, Methods and Gonditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, Subsection 4.1, to read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as specified
in Exhibits B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-5 Amendment #2, Budget.

6. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #2, Budget, vyhich is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

7. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #2, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

Amoskeag Health

RFP-2019-DPHS-23-COMMU-02-A02

Amendment #2

Page 5 of 7

-OS

Contractor Initials

Date

11/24/2020



DocuSign Envelope ID: 079FDD29-FD9S-4820-9AB5-7A97479B3C52

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/24/2020

Date

•D038DBFB6C^AO..

Title: Q-j rector, Division of Public Health Srvcs

Amoskeag Health

11/24/2020

Date

-OocuSlgnad by:

' h

-C52AF039CS5F'M.

Name: McCracken

President/CEO

Amoskeag Health

RFP-2019-DPHS-23-COMMU-02-A02

Amendment #2

Page 6 of 7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 079FDD29-FD98-4820-9A85-7A97479B3C52

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•DocuSlQfMil by;

11/25/2020
.D5CA9?Q?E32C<AE

Date Name: Catherine Pinos
Title.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; ^ (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Amoskeag Health Amendment #2

RFP-2019-DPHS-23-COMMU-02-A02 Page 7 of 7
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Sccrctar>' of Stale of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify thai AMOSK.EAO HEALTH is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 07, 1992. 1 further certify that

all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned; and the attached is a true copy of the list of documents on file in this office.

Business (D; I75M5

Certificate Number: 0004694687

<k>

u.

o

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hi;rcto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 6th day of January A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

hereby certify that:
David Crespo

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Amoskeag Health

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on . 20 dip . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Kris McCracken is duly authorized on behalf of Amoskeag Health to enter into contracts or
agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or
modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vole.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
dale of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached.-This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Signature of Elected Offi^r^^"
Name:

Title:

Paled: \s y

Rev. 03/24/20



ACC^Rcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MMfDDfYYYY)

01/19/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poilcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provlalons or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
thia certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endor8oment(t).

PRODUCER

Aspen Insurance Agency

An Optisure Risk Partner

40 Stark Street

Manchester NH 03104

CONTACT Kim Bilodeau

(503)647-0800 (003)047-0330

AooftESS' k'Ti bilodeauSloptisure.com
INSUI^RfSl AFFOROtNG COVERAGE NAIC •

INSURER A; Selective Insurance Company
INSURED

AMOSKEAG HEALTH & CHILD HEALTH SERVICES INC

145HOLLISST

MANCHESTER NH 03101-1235

INSURER B : Comp-SIGMA Ltd

INSURER c: Hanover Professionals Direct

INSURER D;

INSURER E:

INSURER F ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL2011213067 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

WLieVEPP
IMM/OOftYYYI

OTOC

msQ
SDBR
ms

MLIfiVeicp
TYPE OP INSURANCE POUCY NUMBER UM1T8

. .
TRSR
LTO

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UA8IUTY

CLAIMS-MADE ^ OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES fEa occuiT>nc<l

MED EXP (Any oo» prtoo)

S 2438257 11/01/2020 11/01/2021
PERSONAL &AOV INJURY

GENl AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER:

POUCY □
OTHER:

X PRO
JECT □LOC

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG

NOCR
COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
(EiAcckHnll •_

1,000.000

10.000

3.000,000

3.000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABIUTY

ANY AUTO

1.000,000

X

BODILY INJURY (Ptr p«rsan)

ovmEO
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

X
X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

S 2436257 11/01/2020 11/01/2021 BODILY INJURY (P«f KdMnt}
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Pf >cck>»mi

Auto Elite Pac

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 4,000.000

S 2438257 11/01/2020 11/01/2021 AGGREGATE 4,000.000

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUnVE
OPFICERAIEMBER EXCLUDED?
(M*nd«tofy in NH)
If y«*. dMOlM unMf
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS btkm

PER
STAWTE

oth
er

□ HCHS20200000383 11/01/2020 11/01/2021 E-L. EACH ACCIDENT 500.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 500.000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY UMIT 500.000

FTCA Gap Liability
FTCA Gap Liability L1VA515491 06 07/01/2020 07/01/2021

Each Incident

Aggregate
$1,000,000

$3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Rtmark* Scltodulo, may bo attaebod If moro apaeo la raqirirod)

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human
129 Pleasant ST

Concord NH 03301
I

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THrPOLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

01988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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AMOSKEAG
HEALTH

MISSION

To improve the health and well-being of our patients and the
communities we serve by providing exceptional care and services
that are accessible to all.

VISION

We envision a healthy and vibrant community with strong families
and tight social fabric that ensures everyone has the tools they
need to thrive and succeed.

CORE VALUES

We believe in:

0 Promoting wellness and empowering patients through
education

o Removing barriers so that our patients achieve and maintain

their best possible health _ .

o Providing exceptional, evidence-based and patient-centered
care

o Fostering an environment of respect, integrity and caring
where all people are treated equally with dignity and courtesy
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BerryDunn

AMOSKEAG
HEALTH

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020 and 2019

With Independent Auditor's Report
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Amoskeag Health

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Amoskeag Health, which comprise the
balance sheets as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of operations, functional
expenses, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design,
implemeritation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements In order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Maine • Mew Hampshire • Massachusolts • Conneclicul • West Virginia • Arizona

berrydunacom
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Board of Directors

Amoskeag Health
Page 2

Opinion

.  In our.opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Amoskeag Health as of June 30. 2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations,
changes in Its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

Change In Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2020, Amoskeag
Health adopted new accounting guidance, Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Update No. 2018-08, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958), Clarifying the Scope and the
Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. Our opinion is not modified
with respect to this matter.

/

Portland, Maine
November 3, 2020
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Balance Sheets

June 30, 2020 and 2019

ASSETS

2020 2019

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net
Grants and other receivables

Other current assets

S 3,848,925
1,650.543
985.801

114.920

S 1,368,835
1,890,683
1.063,463
174.461

Total current assets 6,600,189 4.497,442

Property and equipment, net 4.249.451 4.397.203

Total assets S10.849.640 S 8.894.645

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Line of credit

Accounts payable'and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Paycheck Protection Program refundable advance
Current maturities of long-term debt

S  450.000

526,311
1,473,665

308,131

1,467,800

42.505

S  450.000
576,623

1,210,890

46.368

Total current liabilities 4,268,412 2,283.881

Long-term debt, less current maturities 1.556.661 1.594.959

Total liabilities 5.825.073 3.878.840

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

4,711,819
312.748

4.409.285

606.520

Total net assets 5.024.567 5.015.805

Total liabilities and net assets S10.849.640 S 8.894.645

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-3-
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Statements of Operations

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

1 2020 2019

operating revenue
Patient service revenue $11,473,557 $10,543,526

Provision for bad debts f681.463l f380.456i

Net patient service revenue 10,792,094 10,163,070

Grants, contracts and support 8,754,060. 8,260,664

Provider Relief Funds 214,172 -

Other operating revenue 264,523 546,428

Net assets released from restriction for operations 380.447 1.066.720

Total operating revenue 20.405.296 20.036.882

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages 12,918,995 11,994,846

Employee benefits 2,423,466 2,270,095

Program supplies 519,960 525,199

Contracted services 2,190,239 2,175,172

Occupancy 725,333 716,607

Other 811,140 841,861

Depreciation and amortization 426,791 428,159

Interest 86.838 100.845

Total operating expenses 20.102.762 19.052.784

Excess of revenue over expenses 302,534 984,098

Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition - 32.976

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions $  302.534 $ 1.017.074

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-4-



AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Statements of Functional Expenses

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020

Healthcare Services Administratrve and Support Services

Non-clinical Special Total Marketing
Support Enabling Behavioral Medical Community Healthcare and

-
Services Services Health Pharmacv Medical Proorams Services Services Farilttv Fnnrtratsinn Adminrstmtinn Total

Salaries and wages S 1.718,516 S  526,822 i 1,927,974 i  79,500 . $ 5,631,705 $  842.162 S  '236,825 $10,963,504 $ 125,802 S  158,008 :( - 1,671,681 $12,918,995
Employee benefits 323,122 98.862 360.012 14,705 984,467 154,645 42,814 1.978.627 23,506 28,852 392.481 2.423,466
Program supplies 1,308 2,966 58,720 197,339 231,140 7.369 8,622 507,464 1,419 . 11,077 519,960
Contracted services 152,425 265,070 197,932 338,328 474,948 361,030 166,451 1,956,184 14,136 14,036 205,883 2,190,239
Occupancy 114,192 15,814 99,973 4,020 635,524 109,571 . 979,094 (524,235) 16,216 254,258 725,333
Other 69,816 5,692 87,212 435 101,999 20,137 42,731 328,022 55,165 22,673 405,280 811,140
Depreciation and

amortization 205 - 11.358 - 50.809 569 1,224 64.165 241,318 462 120,646 426,791
Interest - - - - . . - . 62.889 . 23,949 86.838

S 2.379.584 S  915.226 i 2.743.181 S  634.327 S 8.110.592 S 1.495.483 S  498.667 $16,777,060 S $  240.247 S 3.085.455 $20,102,762

2019

Healthcare Services Administrative and Support Services
Non-clinical Special Total Marketing
Support Enabling Behavioral Medical Community Healthcare and
Services Services Health Pharmar.v Medical Proorams Services Services Fadlilv Fundraisino Administration Total

Salaries and wages S 1.697.621 S  510.217 S 1.752.659 S  34,993 $ 5,377,237 $  845.292 S  115.735 510,333.754 $  120.979 $  144.863 :S . 1.395.250 $11,994,846
Employee t>enefiis 323.075 97,869 330.299 6,406 932,471 164.397 20.419 1,874.936 22.428 27.986 •  344.745 2.270.095
Program supplies 1.047 5,896 39,987 254.261 217.078 5.211 1.030 524.510 412 120 157 525.199
Contracted services 76.373 251,088 202.352 336,857 445.115 395.557 220.523 1,927.865 21.225 21.502 204.580 2.175.172
Occupancy 121.143 16.549 105,959 4,260 687,382 116.132 - 1,051.425 (516.379) 17.186 .  164.375 716.607
Other 58,708 6.528 109,127 482 137.613 31.160 25.718 369.336 56.513 36.580 379.432 841.861
Depreciation and

amortization - - 3.530 - 45.077 474 - 49.081 255.603 . 123.475 428.159
Interest - . . . . . . 39 219 . 61.626 100 845

Tola!
S 2.277.967 S  888.147 S 2 543 913 S  637.259 S 7.841.973 $ 1.558.223 S  383.425 $16 130 907 S S  248.237 S 2.673.640 S19052 784

t

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.

-5-
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

Net assets without donor restrictions

Excess of revenue over expenses
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition

$  302,534 S  984,098

32.976

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions 302.534 1.017.074

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Net assets released from restriction for operations
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition

86,675

(380,447)
1,000,880

(1,066.720)
(32.976)

Decrease in net assets with donor restrictions (293.7721 (98.816)

Change in net assets 8,762 918.258

Net assets, beginning of year 5.015.805 4.097.547

Net assets, end of year $ 5.024.567 $ 5.015.805

The accompanying notes are an Integra! part of these fihancial statements.

-6-
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Change In net assets $  8,762 $  918,258
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 426,791 428,159
Equity in loss from limited liability company 6,877 -

(Increase) decrease in the following assets
Patient accounts receivable 240,140 (105,792)
Grants and other receivables 77,662 (539,790)
Other current assets 40,441 10,551

Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (50,312) (6,838)
Accrued payroll and related expenses 262,775 94,484
Deferred revenue 308.131 -

Net cash provided by operating activities 1.321.267 799.032

Cash flows from investing activities
Distribution from limited liability company 12,223 -

Capital expenditures (274.8321 (174.3141

Net cash used by Investing activities (262.6091 (174.3141

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments on line of credit - (235,000)
Proceeds from Paycheck Protection Program refundable advance 1,467,800 -

Payments on long-term debt (46.3681 (66.3751

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 1.421.432 (301.3751

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,480,090 323,343

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1.368.835 1.045.492

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 3.848.925 S 1.368.835

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Cash paid for interest S  86.838 £  100.845

Non-cash transactions

Line of credit refinanced as long-term debt j:' S 500.000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-7-
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Organization

Amoskeag Health (the Organization) Is a not-for-profit corporation organized In New Hampshire. The
Organization is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) providing high-quality, comprehensive, and
family-oriented primary health care and support services, which meet the needs of a diverse
community, regardless of age. ethnicity or income.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP), which requires the Organization to report
information in the financial statements according to the following net asset classifications:

Net' assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors..Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Uncertainty Related to COVID-19

On March 11. 2020, the World Health Organization declared the 2019 Novel Coronavirus Disease
(COViD-19) a-globai pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted and could further impact
the Organization's operations as a result of quarantines and travel and logistics restrictions. The
extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic impacts the Organization's business, results of operations
and financial condition will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot
be predicted, including, but not limited to the duration, spread, severity, and impact of the COVID-
19 pandemic, the effects of the COViD-19 pandemic on the Organization's members and the
remedial actions and stimulus measures adopted by local and federal governments. Therefore, the
Organization cannot reasonably estimate the impact at this time.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the internal Revenue Code. As a
public charity, the Organization is exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned
in accordance with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded
that the Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the financial statements.

-8-
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Eaulvaients

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits, money market funds and petty cash.

The Organization has cash deposits in major financial institutions which exceed federal depository
insurance limits. The Organization has not experienced losses in such accounts and rhanagement
believes the credit risk related to these deposits is minimal.

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Ail such amounts are considered collectible.

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable grants, which are
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses. Amounts' received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred
expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received prior to
incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as deferred revenue. The Organization has been
awarded cost reimbursable grants of $5,557,242 and $4,529,840 that have not been recognized at
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, because qualifying expenditures have not yet been
incurred. The Organization also has been awarded $4,410,210 in cost-reimbursable grants with a
project period beginning July 1, 2020.

The Organization receives a significant amount of grants from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (HHS), As with ail government funding, these grants are subject to reduction or
termination in future years. For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, grants from HHS
(including both direct awards and awards passed through other organizations) represented
approximately 58% and 61%, respectively, of grants, contracts and support revenue.

Investment in Limited Liability Company

The Organization was one of eight partners, in Primary Health Care Partners (PHCP), a limited
liability company organized in New Hampshire. The Organization's investment in PHCP was
reported on the equity method due to the Organization's ability to exercise significant influence
over reporting and financial policies. The Organization's investment in PHCP amounted to $22,589
at June 30, 2019. PHCP was terminated on December 31, 2019 due to changes in the regulatory
environment in New Hampshire. The Organization's capital balance was distributed to the
Organization during 2020.

-9-
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Property and Eouipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost. Maintenance, repairs and rhinor renewals are
expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized. Provision for depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the related assets. The
Organization's capitalization policy is applicable for acquisitions greater than $1,000.

Provider Relief Funds

The Coronavirus Aid. Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act and the Paycheck Protection
Program and Health Care Enhancement Act (PPPHCE) Act established the Provider Relief Fund
(PRF) to support healthcare providers in the battle against the COVID-19 outbreak. The PRF is
being administered by HHS. The Organization received PRF in the amount of $214,172 during the
year ended June 30. 2020. These funds are to be used for qualifying expenses and to cover lost
revenue due to COVIO-19. The PRF are considered conditional contributions and are recognized
as income when qualifying expenditures have been incurred, Management believes the
Organization met the conditions necessary to recognize these contributions as revenue as of June
30, 2020, based on its understanding of the requirements related to lost revenues. Management
believes the position taken Is a reasonable interpretation of the rules, subject to further
clarification, which is expected from HHS.

Subsequent reports to HHS are required for the period ending December 31, 2020. On September
19, 2020 and October 22, 2020, HHS issued reporting requirements which revised the previous
definition of qualifying expenditures related to lost revenue. Due to the complexity of the reporting
requirements and the continued issuance of clarifying guidance, there is at least a reasonable
possibility the amount of income recognized related to lost revenues may change by a material
amount. Any difference between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently
determined to be recoverable or payable will be included in income in the year that such amounts
become known.

Paycheck Protection Program

On April 23, 2020, the Organization qualified for and received a loan in the amount of $1,467,800
pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP), a program implemented by the U.S. Small
Business Administration (SBA) under the CARES Act and the PPPHCE Act. The loan Is
unsecured, has a two-year term with a maturity date of April 2022, bears an annual interest rate of
1%, and shall be payable monthly with the first six monthly payments deferred. The principal
amount of the PPP is subject to forgiveness, upon the Organization's request, to the extent that
the proceeds are used to pay qualifying expenditures, including payroll costs, interest on
mortgages, rent and utilities, incurred by the Organization.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

The Organization has utilized 51,088,067 of thQ total available PPP for qualifying expenditures as
of June 30. 2020 and anticipates utilizing the remaining funds in the first quarter of fiscal year
2021. It is the Organization's intent to apply for forgiveness at that time. Forgiveness is subject to
the sole approval of the SBA. The Organization has chosen to follow the conditional contribution
model for the PPP and has opted to not record any income until forgiveness is received. The full
amount of the PPP received is reported as a refundable advance in the current liabilities section of
the balance sheet at June 30, 2020.

COVID-19 Emergency Healthcare Svstem Relief Fund Loan

During July, 2020, the Organization qualified for and received a loan in the amount of $250,000
from the COVID-19 Emergency Healthcare System Relief Fund (Relief Loan), a program
implemented by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services. The
Reiief Loan is unsecured, is interest free, and has a maturity date of 180 days after the expiration
of the State of Emergency declared by the Governor at which time the loan is due in full. The
principal amount of the Reiief Loan has the potential to be converted to a grant at the discretion of
the Governor if certain criteria are met. The Organization submitted an application to convert the
Relief Loan to a grant which was approved.

Patient Service Revenue

Patient service, revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payers, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as
final settlements are determined.

340B Drug Pricing Program

The Organization, as an FQHC, is eligible to participate in the 340B Drug Pricing Program. The
program requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other identified
entities at a reduced price. The Organization contracts with local pharmacies under this program.
The local pharmacies dispense drugs to eligible patients of the Organization and bili Medicare.
Medicaid managed care companies and commercial insurances on behalf of the Organization.
Reimbursement received by the pharmacies is remitted to the Organization, less dispensing and
administrative fees,

Contributions

During 2020, the Organization adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) No. 2018-08, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958), Clarifying the Scope and
the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. ASU No. 2018-08
applies to all entities that receive or make contributions and clarifies the definition of transactions
accounted for as an exchange transaction subject to applicable guidance for revenue recognition,
and transactions that should be accounted for as contributions (non-exchange transactions)
subject to the contribution accounting model.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Further, ASU No. 2018-08 provides criteria for evaluating whether contributions are unconditional
or conditional. Conditional contributions specify a barrier that the recipient must overcome and a
right of return that releases the donor from its obligation if the barrier is not achieved, otherwise
the contribution is unconditional. Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are
reported at fair value at the date the promise is received, which is then treated as cost. Conditional
contributions received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as deferred revenue.
The adoption of ASU No. 2018-08 was effective for the year ended June 30, 2020, and thus had
no impact on the Organization's 2019 net assets, results of its operations, or cash flows. Prior to
the adoption of ASU No. 2018-08, the Organization reported grant awards in net assets with donor
restrictions, with releases from restriction when qualifying expenditures were incurred.

Contributions are reported as net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements
of operations as net assets released from restriction.

Functional Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than
one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a reasonable
basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include depreciation, interest,
and office and occupancy costs, which are allocated on a square-footage basis, as well as the
shared systems technology fees for the Organization's medical records and billing system, which
are allocated based oh the percentage of patients served by each function.

Excess of Revenue Over Expenses

The statements of operations reflect the excess of revenue over expenses. Changes in net assets
without donor restrictions which are excluded from the excess of revenue over expenses include
contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions which, by donor
restriction, were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets).

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through November 3, 2020, the date that the financial statements
were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for
inclusion in the financial statements.

2. Avallabilitv and Llaulditv of Financial Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. The Organization has various sources of liquidity at its disposal,
including cash and cash equivalents and a line of credit,
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

The Organization had working capital of $2,331,777 and $2,213,561 at June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. The Organization had average days (based on normal expenditures) cash and cash
equivalents on hand (including investments and assets limited as to use for working capital) of 150
and 113 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year were as follows;

2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,848,925 $ 1,368,835
Patient accounts receivable, net 1,650,543 1,890,683
Grants and other receivables 985.801 1.063.463

Financial assets available 6,485,269 4,322,981

Less net assets with donor restrictions 312.748 606.520

Financial assets available for general expenditure $ ^,172t521 $ 3,716,4^

The Organization's goal is generally to have, at the minimum, the Health Resources and Services
Administration recommended days cash on hand for operations of 30 days. At June 30, 2020,
average days cash on hand was higher than the .Organization's goal due to various COVID related
relief payments disclosed in Note 1.

The Organization has a Si.000,000 line of credit, as discussed in more detail in Note 5. As of June
30, 2020, $550,000 remained available on the line of credit.

3. Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable consisted of the following as of June 30:

202Q 2019

Patient service accounts receivable $ 2,977,166 S 3,115,302
Contract 340B pharmacy program receivables 117.989 106.443

Total patient accounts receivable 3,095,155 3,221,745
Allowance for doubtful accounts f1.444.6121 f1.331.0621

Patient accounts receivable, net $ 1,650,5^ S 1,990,6^
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Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2020 and 2019

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. Primary payers representing 10% or more of
the Organization's gross patient accounts receivable are as follows;

2020 2019

Medicare 15 % 13 %

Medicald 22 % 26 %

Patient accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. In evaluating the collectabllity of patient accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes
its past history and identifies trends for each individual payer. Management regularly reviews data
about revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for uncollectible accounts. Amounts
not collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted are applied against the
allowance for uncollectible accounts.

A reconciliation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts follows as of June 30:

2020 2019

Balance, beginning of year $ 1,331,062 $ 1,219,080
Provision for bad debts 681,463 380,456
Write-offs (567.9131 (268.4741

Balance, end of year $ 1.444.612 $ 1,331.062

The increase in the allowance is due to an increase in balances over 240 days old.

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following as of June 30:

2020 2019

Land $ 81,000 S 81,000
Building and leasehold improvements 5,165,754 5,125,647
Furniture and equipment 2.355.196 2.120.471

Total cost 7,601,950 7,327,118

Less accumulated depreciation 3.352.499 2.929.915

Property and equipment, net $ 4,249,4^ S 4,397,2^^

Property and equipment acquired with Federal grant funds are subject to specific federal
standards for sales and other dispositions. In many cases, the Federal government retains a
residual ownership interest in the assets, requiring prior approval and restrictions on disposition.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

5. Line of Credit

The Organization has a $1,000,000 line of credit demand note with a local banking institution
subject to an annual review as of December 31. The line of credit is collateralized by all assets.
The Interest rate is LIBOR plus 3.5% (5.3% at June 30. 2020). There was an outstanding balance
on the line of credit of $450,000 at June 30. 2020 and 2019.

The Organization has a 30-day paydown requirement on the line of credit. For the year ended
June 30. 2020. the Organization received a waiver from the bank for the paydown requirement.

6. Long-term Debt

Long-terrn debt consists of the following as of June 30:

2020 2019

Note payable, with a local bank (see terms below) $ 1,598,648 $ 1.634,694

Note payable, New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities
Authority (NHHEFA), payable in monthly installments Of $513.
including interest at 1.00%, due July 2020. collateralized by
all business assets 518 6.633

Total long-term debt 1,599,168 1,641,327
Less current maturities 42.505 46.368

Long-term debt, less current maturities $ 1.556.6^ S 1.594.9^

The Organization has a promissory note with Citizens Bank. N. A. (Citizens), collateralized by real
estate, for $1,670,000 with NHHEFA participating in the lending for $450,000 of the note payable.
Monthly payments of $8,595. including interest fixed at 3.76%, are based on a 25 year
amortization schedule and are to be paid through April 2026, at which time a balloon payment will
be due for the remaining balance. The note is collateralized by real estate.

Scheduled principal repayments of long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter follows as
of June 30, 2020:

2021 S 42,505
2022 43,616
2023 45.308 ,
,2024 • 46,912

2025 48.886
Thereafter 1.371.939

Total S 1.599.166
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Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

The OrganlEation is required to meet an annuai minimum working capital and debt service
coverage debt covenants as defined in the loan agreement with Citizens. In the event of default,
Citizens has the option to terminate the agreement and immediately request payment of the
outstanding debt without notice of any kind to the Organization. The Organization was in
compliance with ail loan covenants at June 30, 2020.

7. Net Assets

Net assets were as follows as of June 30:

Net assets without donor restrictions

Undesignated
Designated for working capital

2020

$  462,368
4.249.451

2019

S  12.082
4.397.203

Total S 4.711.819 S 4.409.285

Net assets with donor restrictions for specific purpose
Temporary In nature

Healthcare services

Child health services
$  80,961

130.429

S  364,936
140.226

Total 211,390 505,162

Permanent In nature

Available to borrow for working capital as needed 101.358 101.358

Total $  312.748 S  606.520

Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue follows for the years ended June 30:

2020 2019

Gross charges
Contract 340B pharmacy revenue

$18,001,613
1.508.541

$18,103,265
1.553.866

Total gross revenue 19,510,154 19,657,131

Contractual adjustments
Sliding fee scale discounts

(6,016,154)
(2.020.4431

(7.174.190)
(1.939.4151

Total patient service revenue $11,473,557 $10,543,526
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Revenue from Medicaid accounted for approximately 55% and 53% of the Organization's gross
patient service revenue for the years ended June 30. 2020 and 2019, respectively. No other
individual payer represented more than 10% of the Organization's gross patient service revenue.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare. Medicaid and 340B programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. The Organization believes that it is in compliance with all laws and
regulations. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare, Medicaid and 340B. Differences between amounts previously
estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are included in
patient service revenue in the year that such amounts become known.

A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows:

Medicare

The Organization is reimbursed for the care of qualified patients on a prospective basis, with
retroactive settlements related to vaccine costs only. The prospective payment Is based on a
geographically-adjusted rate determined by Federal guidelines. Overall, reimbursement is subject
to a maximum allowable rate per visit.

Medicaid and Other Pavers

The Organization also has entered into payment agreements with Medicaid and certain
commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations and preferred provider
organizations. The basis for payment to the Organization under these agreements includes
prospectively determined rates per visit and contractually obligated payment rates which may be
less than the Organization's public fee schedule.

Charltv Care

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its sliding fee discount
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Organization does
not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net
patient service revenue. The Organization estimates the costs associated with providing charity
care by calculating the ratio of total cost to total charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the
gross uncompensated charges associated with providing care to patients eligible for free care. The
estimated cost of providing services to patients under the Organization sliding fee discount policy
amounted to S2,432,740 and $2,217,386 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

The Organization is able to provide these services with a component of funds received through
local community support and federal and stale grants.
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Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

9. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) that
covers substantially all employees. The Organization contributed $285,796 and S309.981 for the
years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

10. Medical Malpractice Insurance

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FQHC under the Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of the year ended
June 30. 2020, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of
management, wiil be settled for amounts in excess of both FTCA and additional medical
malpractice insurance coverage, nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents which require
loss accrual. The Organization intends to renew the additional medical malpractice insurance
coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates that such coverage will be available.

11. Lease Commitments

The Organization leases office space under noncancelable operating leases. Future minimum
lease payments under these lease agreements are as follows:

2021 S 194,822
2022 178,451

2023 - 147,032
2024 94.357

Total S 614.662

Rent expense amounted to $226,805 and $223,302 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.
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LARA K. QUIROGA, M.ED.

Childhood Trauma

Early Childhood Policy .
.Early Car:e & Educatlori Program Adminislration

Expertise Highlights

Children and Families Living in Poverty
Children with Challenging Behaviors
Professional Oevelopmeni

Group Facilitation
Quality Improvement Processes
Project Management

Professional Experience
AMOSKEAG HEALTH-MANCHESTER, NH 2013-present
Director of Strategic Initiatives for Children

• Provide leadership in efforts to improve young child wellness and local service infrastructure, including implementing evidence-based and promising practices and
facilitating the estsbiishment oi inleragency collaborations with other community-based, child- and famtfy-scrving public agencies

■ Responsible for oversight of local syslern of care activities to improve outcomes for young children through improved collaboration, integration, and infrastructure
development including Ihe Adverse Childhood Experiences Response Team (ACERT) In collaborsfon with Maricheslcr Police Department and YWCA NH

■ Guide tfte development and imptemertlatlon of the Strategic Plan and coordinate data and evaluation ftjr performance reporting and evaluation purposes

Pfolecl LAUNCH Director

■ Lead all Project LAUNCH (Linking Actions for Unmet Needs in Children's Health] activities within the locally-funded community and ensure their effective and
efTiciem service delivery, including improving a system of developmental screening, enhanced home visiting, mental health consultation in early care and
education, integration of behavioral health Into primary care, and parenting skills training

■ Convene and lead a Local Council on Young Child VVeliness to develop and implement a Strategic Plan
• Provide leadership in all local facets of young chHd weilness efforts and facilitate efforts to improve local infrastructure
• 'Guide Ihe devetopment and implementation of the Strategic Plan and coordinate data and evaluation for performance reporting and evaluaton purposes
• Promote the Project LAUNCH mission through upholding standards of cultural competence, system of care principles, family involvemenL and integrative practices

TUFTS UNIVERSITY-MEDFORO. MA 20tt-20l3

Communications and Prolecl Administrator: Office of the President

• Conceptualize and manage implementation of a coordinated system of communications for the university's strategic initiatives, including diversity, sustainabilily.
admin'istrativo effectiveness, strategic planning, and capital planning

• Support various committees led by the President and Chief of Staff, including the President's Council on Diversity and Council on Campus Sustainability
■ Coordinate with the Offlce of the Provost regarding strategic plan development aligned to the university's mission and vision and initiatives of the President's Office
■ Collaborate with the Office of institutional Research to gather and analyze data to be used as an evidence base for a range of on-going and one-time projects
• Write and diS5emir\3te a broad range of communications and correspondence including reports, announcements, and messages to the TuRs community
• Manage content on the President's Office website

Accreditation Coordinator: Office of Institutional Research and Evaluation

■ Provide support to the chair of the NEASC steering committee and assist the chairs of the 11 standard woridng groups in facilitating meetings and writing reports
■ Serve as a resource for information on the aarediiation process and the development of a comprehensive teaming outcomes assessment system
• Coordinate and disseminate information to all individuals, committees, and agencies im/r^ed with the accrediialion process
• Create, manage, organize, and update an acaedilation wiki for internal university use and a virtual workroom for visiting accreditatjon team
■ Manage and schedule the accreditation site visit
■ Coordinate the preparation of and edit Tufts' accreditation self-study

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY- MANCHESTER. NH 2007 - 20H

Community Outreach Coordinator: School of Education

■ Support collaboration with community partners, stale organizations, and acaediting agencies
• Develop and assist in offering outreach programs and events supporting the professional devdopmeni of students, teachers, parents, and faculty/staff
• Assist in School of Education's reacaedilation preparation through the NH Department of Education
• ̂ rve as writer and content editor for the university semi-annual magazine and editor of School of Education monthly nevrsletter
■ Coordinate with the Olfices of Admissions and Transfer Admissions to streamline activities for prospective students, including open house and orientation events
• Developed two university-wide articulatioh agreements, including dual admission protocol and transfer credit equivalents, with 1^1 community colleges

Adjunct Faculty: School of Education and Colleoe of Online and Continuing Education

• Develop syllabus for course offering, Including required reading and writing assignments, quizzes, exams, observations, and class content for undergraduate and
graduate level coursewotk in the field of Child Development and Earty Childhood Education
: Adminislration of Child Development Programs ; Cognitive Development of Young Children : Infants and Toddlers
r Behavior Theory and Practice i Family and Culture Language and Cognitive Development
: Child Assessment r Theories of Play : Psychosocial Devdopmeni

MANCHESTER COMMUNITY COLLEGE- MANCHESTER, NH

Adjunct Faculty: Early Childhood Education Department

• Teach undergraduate level coursework in the field of Early Childhood Education
; ECE 100 Early Child Growth 8 Development
r ECE 116 Child Health, Safety. & Nutrition
: ECE 250 Childcare Administration and Management

2006 - 2008
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VNA CHILD CARE AND FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER- MANCHESTER. NH 2001 - 2007
PfOQfam Manager: Education and Professional Development

• Supervise over 50 staff and monitor classrooms to ensure provision of developmentaliy appropriate care and education to approximately 200 children and families
• Coordinate and provide professional development and training for over 50 teaching slan
• Provide evaluation and assistance to teachers who care for children with behavioral issues, including involvement on Universal. Targeted, and Intensive PBIS

Teams to develop school-wide behavior expectations and individualized tehavior intervention plans based on functional behavioral assessment
• Liaise with representatives from the Manchester School Dlstricl to ensure consistent implementation of the Early Reading First progranj. including Curiosity Crxner

curriculum. PPVT-4 and PALS-PreK assessments, and professional development
• Coordinate with local school district to ensure children with special needs receive services and in accordance vnlh lEPilFSP activities/goals
•  Increase capacity for and design quality initiatives including literacy, math, science, gross motor, and language arts
• Monitor day to day operational expenditures and discrepandes and provide ir^t into annual budget planning

HEAD START/EARLY HEAD START, SOUTHERN NH SERVICES, INC. - MANCHESTER, NH 1999 ■ 2001
Systems Coordinator

• Develop and implement community ci^laborations and agreements
• Monitor a multi-million dollar budget and assist in developmcnl and writing of federal grant proposals
• Collaborate with Management Team to revise various program systems
• Ptan and coordinate monthfy Parent Policy Committee meetings

Center Director

■ Responsible for daily operations, management, and quality child care of the center
• Supervise leaching and family service staff
• Design and implement staff training

■ Assist in recruitment of eligible families in community for program enrollment

Teacher

• Caregtver in Head Start and Early Head Slart programs
• Plan and implement developmentaliy appropriate curriculum
■ Home visit with families enrolled in program
■ Select and order equipment (or model infant/toddler and preschool classrooms

KIDS CARROUSEL - MANCHESTER, NH f998-J999
Teacher

■ Plan and implement daily schedule and lesson plans
• Supervise two assistants with responsibility for sixteen toddlers
■ De>/elop job description for Assistant Teacher position

Selected Trainer/Consultant Work

SERESC PRESCHOOL TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE NETWORK- BEDFORD, NH 2009 - 2010
GROW. LEARN, 4 PLAY AT MOORE CENTER SERVICES; INC. - MANCHESTER. NH 2009
VNA CHILD CARE AND FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER- MANCHESTER, NH 2007 - 2010
EASTERSEALS CHILD DEVELOPMENT & FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER- MANCHESTER. NH 2014 ■ 2017

Education

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY- MANCHESTER. NH
Master of Education in Child Development with a concentration In Administration, 2007
Thesis: The /nfluence of Teacher EducoOon Level on Eariy Childhood Education Program Quality

GRANITE STATE COLLEGE- MANCHESTER, NH
Bachelor of Science in Early Childhood Education Administration, 2004

Professional Summary
AWARDS

• Henry Morgan Award (achievement in professional development and commitment to improving the quality of care and education in NH)
• 2015.2016. and 2018 NH Early Learning Champion Award

SELECTED BOARDS, COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS. AND ACTIVITIES
• Vice Chair of Manchester Community Resource Center Board of Directors (2018-present)
■ NH Children's Trust Board of Directors (ex-ofTicio: Board Chair 2016-2019: Board member 2011-2019)
• Member of Manchester Family Justice Center Board (2018-2020)
• Presenter at the National Center for Schod Mental Health Annual Conference on Advancing School Mental Health (2019)
• Co-Chair of Spark NH Policy Committee (2017-2018)
• Presenter at the Zero to Three National Training Institute (2016)
• Presenter at the Pyramid Model Consortium National Trainlr^g Institute on Effeclivo Practices: Addressing Challenging Behaviof (2016.2018)
• Presenter at iheNAEYC Annual Conference (2008.2009,2010) and NAEYC Professional Development Institute (2010)
• Mentor in the Slate of NH Child Development Bureau Trainer Development Program (2008- 20091
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Cammie Switzer, MSW

EDUCATION . ,

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH, MSW, May 2018
Virginia Commonwealth University, Bachelor of Fine Arts, Richmond, VA, May 2011

COMMUNITY

•  Mission in Action Committee Member, Congregational Church in Exeter, December 2018-Present

o  Provide knowledge of area social service agencies and support members in making funding
recommendations to local non-profits

•  Coordinator, New Hampshire Aquaculture Farmers Initiative, NH Sea Grant, November 2019-Present

o  Facilitate member meetings, provide local advocacy and support grant writing to fund initiative

EXPERIENCE

LAUNCH Manchester Manager, Amoskeag Health, January 2020-Present

•  Coordinate planning and implementation activities with other local child and family serving agencies

•  Communicate regularly with stakeholders and participate on relevant committees

•  Convene and facilitate the Community Implementation Team (CIT)

•  Coordinate of local level work with the state level infrastructure and policy development

•  Address issues necessary to resolve local barriers

• Work to continually engage and support CIT members

•  Facilitate completion of Manchester CIT Practice Profiles

•  Assist in the development and execution of contracts with designated agencies and trainers

•  Promote the initiative and its theory of change with others
Consultant, Preschool Development Grant, United Way of the Greater Seacoast, May 2019-January 2020

•  Support two early childhood coalitions in Somersworth and Rochester; provide project management
support, meeting facilitation, event coordination, development of marketing materials, manage social

media account, review budget, draft contracts and MOUs

•  Create and implement data collection tools (survey, focus group questions) and evaluate results and

processes for quality improvement

•  Support Welcome Families Website project with writing RFP, data collection and evaluation of grant

process, support weekly meetings and facilitate discussions
evaluation Staff, New England Regional Genetic Network, University of New Hampshire, June 2018-January 2020

•  Supported writing of HRSA renewal grant and telehealth Request for Proposals
•  Conduct needs assessment for regional launch of telehealth sites

•  Conduct needs assessment with Family Voices groups throughout New England and make

recommendations for programmatic funds based on findings

•  Provide on-going evaluation of activities (trainings, webinars, events) and make recommendations to

management team

Family Outreach Therapist, Seacoast Mental Health, September 2018-May 2019

•  Evaluate youth symptoms through initial biopsychosocial, provide preliminary diagnosis, and develop a
'treatment plan to ensure youth and family goals achieved

•  Encourage youth treatment adherence through use of various modalities including CBT, mindfulness, and
attachment focused therapies ^

•  Conduct family needs assessment and provide on-going targeted case management services

Research Associate, Institute for Health Policy and Practice, University of New Hampshire, May-September 2018

•  Provide project management for the Behavioral Health Learning Collaborative including: data collection,
planning, CEU application, follow-up, and evaluation of programming

•  Extensive writing projects, including, HRSA grant for youth behavioral health services and ACfS: Final
Report for the Pedialric Improvement Project (PIP)
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Cumniunity Collnboratlons to Strengthen & Prosen e Families
KFP-20I9-DPHS-23-COMMU

Kev Personnel

Name Job Title Salary y« Paid rroni

this Contract

Amount Paid

from thi.s Contract

Ltira Qiiiroga Director of Siraiegic
Initiatives for Children

$84,864 30% $25,459.20

Cameron Swiizer LAUNCH Manchester

Manauer

$64,896.00 75% $48,672.00
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STATE OF NEW. HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/y/S/O/V OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

tj^AWbintnt 29HA2ENDRIVE.CONCORD.NH 03301
CoofflWMff 603.271^501 lAOOASl^MS Eit 4501

F»x: 603-271.4S1? TDD Accm: 1400-735-2964
Use M. Merrix www.dbhs.nti.gov

DIrtvtor

July 22. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health Services, to
enter Into Sole Source amendments to existing contracts for the provision of Community
Collaboration services by providing parental assistance programmirig to the Winnipesauke and
Manchester communities to reduce child maltreatment and the risk of children entering ̂ ter
care, by increasing the total price limitation by $328,266 from $1,600,000 to $1,928,266 with no
change to the contract completion date of June 30, 2021 effective upon Governor and Council
approval. The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on July 31. 2019 (Item
#18). 39% Federal Funds. 61% General Funds.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state Fiscal years through the Budget Office, If needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sol© Source because the increase in funding exceeds ten percent (10%)
of the original contract price limitation. As previously stated, the original contract was approved
by Governor and Council on July 31, 2019 (Item #18).

The purpose of this request is to Increase funds to design evidence-based programs and
Identify best practices that will prevent out-of-home placements of children and reduce the numter
of child protection cases. The two Community Collaboration contracts are currently bringing
various agencies and representatives together to create an upstream approach to prevention of
child maltreatment services. These contracts are focused-on providing services to families and
creating system level changes to a more coordinated service delivery for families. Providers are
currently implementing best practices and will begin enrolment within the next few weeks.
Providers have designed a family navigation entry point at their agencies that will provide Intake,
screening, crisis support, advocacy, warm handoffs, and cross system case management to
coordinate services. During the time of the inllial contract procurement, the available general
funds were not present due to the continuing resolution. With the addition of the Parental
Assistance Program funds In general funds. New Hampshire wants to strengthen the capacity in
these two Community Collaboration sites through these contracts. The contracts support
development of collaborative educational programs and professional partnerships within the
targeted communities. These programs and partnerships include designing prevention programs.
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His Exoellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

parent education, and programs that offer alternatives to out of home placement for children.
Through these contracts, the Department will expand access to community-based services for
high-risk families, and provide prevention programming focused on strengthening and presenring
families.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Section 2. Subsection 2.1 of the original contracts, the parties
have the option to extend the agreements for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and
Council approval. The Department Is not exercising its option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, New Hampshire
children and their families may not receive prevention activities within the targeted communities
identified as needing the greatest prevention supports and sen/Ices.

Area served: Manchester and Winnipesauke Public Health Region.

Source of Funds: 39% Federal Funds. CFDA #93.670, FAIN #90CA1858 US DHHS,
Administration on Children, Youth, and Families (ACYF), Children's Bureau, Community
Collaboration to Strengthen and Preserve Families in NH; and 61% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program:

Respectfi^lyisubmitted.

^ij Lori A. Shibinette
yUr Commissioner

Th* Dtpartmtnl of HeoUh and Human Sorvicet'tdiuion it to join communitU$ ond/dmilit*
in prouiding opportunitiei for citittnt to othitve htalth and indeptndenet.
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

COMMUNITY COLLABORATION

05*9S-042-421010-29S8 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: HUMAN

SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD-FAMILY SERVICES

1. Amoskeag Health, Vendor #157274-8001

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account

Class

Title

Job

Number Federal General

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2020 645-504004

General

Funds for

Other

42105745 $400,000.00 $400,000.00 $0.00 $400,000.00

2021 645-504004

General

Funds for

Other

42105745 $200,000.00 $200,000.00 $100,000.00 $300,000.00

Subtotal $600,000.00 $100,000.00 $700,000.00

^ Lakes Region Community Services, Vendor #177251-6002

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account

Class

Title

Job

Number Federal General

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2020 645-504004

General

Funds for

Other
42105745 $400,000.00 $400,000.00 $0.00 $400,000.00

2021 645-504004

General

Funds for

Other

42105745 $200,000.00 $200,000.00 $100,000.00 $300,000.00

Subtotal $600,000.00 $100,000.00 $700,000.00
Total 2958 AU: $1,200,000.00 $200,000.00 $1,400,000.00
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

COMMUNITY COLLABORATION

05-95-090-902010-7047 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION
OF PUBLIC HEALTH. COMMUNITY COLLABORATION

1. Amoskeag Health, Vendor #147274-8001

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account Class Title

Job

Number Federal General

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731

Contracts

for Program
Services

90070470 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2021 102-500371

Contracts

for Program
Services

90070470 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $76,341.00 $176,341.00

Subtotal $200,000 $76,341.00 $276,341.00

2. Lakes Region Community Services, Vendor #177251-8002

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account Class Title

Job

Number Federal General

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2020 102-50073,1
Contracts

for Program
Services

90070470 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2021 102-500731

Contracts

for Program
Services

90070470 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $51,925.00 $"151,925.00

Subtotal $200,000.00 $51,925.00 $251,925.00
Total 7047 AU: $400,000.00 $128,266.00 $528,266.00

Grand Total: $1,600,000.00 $328,266.00 $1,928,266.00



DocuSign Envelope ID: 079FDD29-FO98-4820-9AB5-7A97479B3C52

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaboretlons to Strengthen and Preserve Families

State of New Hampshlie
Department ̂  Health and Human Services

Amendment ei to ttte Community Collaboratlone to Strengthen and Preserve Families Contract

This I** Amendment to the Community CoBabOfations to Strengthen end Present Families contract
(hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment #1') is by and between the Stale of New Hampshire, Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafler referred to as the "State" or "Oepartmenf) and AmoaKeag
Health (formerly Manchester Community Health Center), (hereinafter referred to as *The Contrartor'O. a
nonproTrt corporation with a place of business at 145 HoDis Street, Manchester, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 31,2019. (Item #18), the Contractor agreed to perform certain sendees based upon the terms and
conditions specified (n the Contract and in oonslderatjon of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limltatton to support continued delivery of these
services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual oovenants and conditions containad
^ the Contract end set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as fonows;

1. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.0. Price Limitation, to read:

$976,341.

2. ExhIbK B. Methods and Condtions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, SubsecBon 4.1. to read:

4.1 Payment'shali be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual e^qpendltures Incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shaO be In accordance with the approved line Item, as specified
m Ejdiibfts B-1. Bud^t through Ejdiibit B-3 Amendment #1. Budget

3. Modify Exhbit B-3. Budget, by replacing H in Its entirety with Exhft)!! B-3 Amerxlment #1, Budget,
which is attached hereto arid Incorporated by reference herein.

AmoakcegHcatth AmcnOnientfll Cortrector littiali
RFP-201W)PHS-23<»MMU-02-A01 PegelOfS 0019
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New Hampehire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaboratlone to Strengthen and Preserve Families

This amendment shaD be efloctrve upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of t^ date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date toiT-

yV560GL^^ OKHlsSltn/^
Amoskeag Health

Amoskeeg Heeith A/ncndmertai

RFP-2O19-OPHS-23-COMMU-02-AO1 PaB8 2ot3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community ColleboratlQns.to Strengthen and Preserve Families

The preceding Anwdment. having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

07/17/20

Date Name:
TitJe: Catherine Pinos, Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Anner>dment was approved by the Govemor arid Executive Coundl of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Amoskeag Hesfth Amendment #1
RFP-20lS0PHS-23<X)MMU-02-AO1 PogeSoia
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Jeffrey A. "
Cecnnluioacr

LU* M. Morris
Dlrrcier

I? ^
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

29 HAZCN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-27M50I |.60(k8S3-334S EiL 4S0t

res:603-27M827 TDD Acccu: 1-800-735-2964
www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 4, 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Sen/Ices. Division of Public Health Services, to
enter into retroactive agreements with the two (2) vendors listed below, for,the provision of Comrnunity
Collaboration services, by providing a service array of best practice parental assistance programming to
the Winnipesaukc and Manchester communities to reduce child maltreatment and the risk of children
entering foster care, in an amount not to exceed $1,600,000, effective retroactive to March 5.2019, upon
Governor and the Executive Council approval through June 30. 2021. 25% Federal Funds. 75% General
Funds.

Vendor Name

)

Vendor Number Location
Contract

Amount

Manchester Community Health
Center

#157274-6001
145 Hoilis Street.

Manchester, NH 03101
$800,000

Lakes Region Community Services #233352-R001
719 North Main Street.
Laconia. NH 03246

$800,000

Total; ^ $1,600,000

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon the availability
and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, vnlh authority to adjust amounts
within the price limitation, class lines and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95^42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD-FAMILY SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 . 645-504004 General Funds for Other 42105745 $800,000

2021 645-504004 General Funds for Other 42105745 $400,000
1

Sub Total. $1,200,000
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His Excellency. Governor Chrislopher T. SurHinu
And the Horwrable Coundl

Page 2 of 4

05.95-090-902010-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. COMMUNITY COLLABORATION

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

90070470 ■ $200,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

90070470 $200,000

Sub Total: $400,000

Total: $1,600,000

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive due to a programmatic determination to align federal and state
resources, the timeline necessary to do this, and delays in the contracting process due to the volume of
contracts pending in the DHHS pipeline. The Department was awarded Federal Funds through the
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families grant in October 2018. This provided
an important opportunity to align and leverage both these federal resources along with state resources
-provided through SB 592 for Parental Assistance Programs. The opportunity to simultaneously target
efforts towards reducing child maltreatment and the number of children at risk of foster care in two needy
communities was deemed priority; however, this delayed the procurement process timeline until Federal
Funds were accepted to expend by the Fiscal Committee in late January 2019. Once this occurred, the
procurement process moved forward as rapidly as possible by DHHS staff; however, due to other
contracts pending with the. DHHS contracts unit delays occurred in finalizing proposal selections and
notifying vendors.

/

Once notified of their award, due the condensed timeline, vendors needed to initiate preparatory
activities immediately. These activities included; researching and selecting an array of evidence-based
services and associated rhaterials. assessing staff training needs, planning and schooling trainings and
facilitating stakeholder meetings to promote improved coordination of services and referrals.

The purpose of this request is to design evidence-based programs and identify best practices that
will prevent out-of-home placements of children and reduce the number of child protection cases. The
contracts support development of collaborative educational programs and professional partnerships
within the targeted communities. These programs and partnerships include designing prevention
programs, court diversion programs. ar>d programs that offer alternative to out of home placement for
children.

New Hampshire currently ranks 5th in the nation in the overall rale of overdose, of prescription
and Injection drugs, in State Fiscal Year 2017, New Hampshire spent $36 nriillion on foster care to serve
children coming into the system. Through these contracts, the Department will expand access to
communlty-based services for high-risk families, and provide prevention programming focused on
strengthening and preserving families.

Manchester Community Health Center and Lakes Region Community Senrices were selected for
this project through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was p>osted on the Department
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorsble Coor>d)
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of Health and Human Services' web site from December 10. 2018 through January 22, 2019. The
Department received two (2) proposals. The proposals were reviewed and scored by a team of
individuals with program specific knowledge. The two selected vendors were able to demonstrate within
their proposals, the ability to provide evidence-based strategies unique to the targeted communities they
will serve, as well as a readiness to engage in boundary-spanning leadership activities outlined in the
grant proposal. Some of the activities the vendors will engage in include developing Community
Integration Teams (CITs), as well as the development and implementations of evidence-based programs
that increase parental protective factors. Tbe knowledge based on science shows the impact that
adverse childhood experiences can have on a child and the impact to their overall long-term health
outcomes. The Score Summary is attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals ar^J in Exhibit C-1 of these contracts, the Department
has the option to extend contract services for up,to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

The goal of these contracts is to provide services that strengthen and preserve families, prior to
entering the child welfare system, and implement a community-based approach to responding to the
needs families have through increasing "protective factors' such as. parental resilience, increasing social
connections, concrete supports in times of need, knowledge of parenting and child developnient, and
increasing social and emotional competence. When present, these "protective factors' can help to
mitigate risk and can increase health and overall well-being for families and children.

The following performance measures and objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of
the contracts:

Year 1: Performance Measures for Planning Period:

•  Every six (6) months. 90% of CIT membership will participate in training that
includes Boundary Spanning Leadership (BSL) training workshops and evaluation
activities.

•  Every six (6) months.,. 90% of CIT membership will participate in evaluation
baseline and measurement studies such as surveys, focus groups and/or irv^epth
interviews, as appropriate to project activities.

•  CIT members must attend 90% of coaching sessions. •

Year 2: Ongoing Implementation Efforts, which include, but are not limited to:

•  Tracking performance measures specific .to the CIT multi-sectoral interventions.

•  Plan Do Study Act cycles for quality improvement.

•  Collecting and participating in evaluation activities intended to result In:

o  Increased effectiveness of population based prevention,

o  Increases in protective factors,

o Reductions in reports of child maltreatment.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request. New Hampshire children
and their families may not receive prevention activities vrithin the targeted communities identified as
needing the greatest prevention supports and services.

Area served: Manchester and WinnipesauKe Public Health Region.
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Source of Funds: 25% Federal funds from CFDA 93.670 Administration for Children and Families.
FAIN 90CA1858 and 75% General funds.

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available, additional General
Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

ey A. f^^eyers '
missioner

Th* OcporiHunt of Heotih and Human Struiert' Mission is to join eomniunilies ond fomilies
in prouidind cpporlnnities for eilixens lo achieve health ond independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of.Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scorinjjheet

Community Colleboretlons to
Strengthen end Preserve Femilies

RFP Ntme

RFP-20t9-OPHS-23-COMMU

RFP Number Reviewer Names
Rttonde siegS^dinlfStritorl
OPHS Heatm htgmi Olc

Bidder Name

^"Lakes Region Community Services

Paee/Fell

Mailmunt

Points

Actual

Points

^rah Moeekel. AdnVnIstrstor Family
Strength & ChlM Well-being Inliialhre,

33S 1S3

Ksi Ciovanditto, OCYF. Community I
Fan% Support

2
' Manchester Community Hoaltti Center 23S tea

Eltn Chase^ucerd, Financial Admin.

*■ OPHS

3 0 235 0
.. Amy Derqutsl. Financial Adminlslrator

11. OPHS
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FORM NUMBER P>37 (version S/8/)S)

Subjcci: RFP-7QI9.DPHS-23-COMMU-07 Community Collebofi^ion^ to Strenglhcn and PfCSCrVC fmWii
Noiice: This agreemcni and all of iis anachments shall become public upon submission (o Governor and

Executive Council for approval. Any information that is prtvaic, confidential or proprietary must
be cicariy identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

agreement

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDEfVTIKH^A 1 lUf^.

I.l State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 Sute Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name
Martchester Community Health Center

1.4 Contractor Address
145 Hollij Street. Manchester. NH 03101

I.S Contractor Phone

Number '

603-935-5210

1.6 Account Number

005-095-042-42IOIO-

29580000.05-095-090-
902010-70470000

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2021

1.8 Price Limitation

S800.000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White. Direaor

I.IO State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

1.13 Acknowiedgcmcnt: Slate of .Countypf f

On before the undcnigned ofTicer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.H. and acknowledged that s/he executed this document In the capacity
IhHirdfrt/t in'Kfn-lr I 12

•5-.-.I3.! SignAturt:o.f Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

'1 rsei'ii:

KURT LAWLOfKJONES. Notary Pubtic
Stata of New Hampehiro
1..1— <1

|''l..:3.2 -NamoTanU .Title of Notary or Justice of the Pe^^
.Mufzrr

1.14 State Agwcy Signature

(vUiSl Date:

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory .

1.16 Appfo^l by the N.H. Department of Administration. Division of Personnel 0/oppl'cobit)

By: Director. On:

1.17 Approval by ihcAnomcyGeneral (Form. Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

1. i S ApprovaPby the Gov^moi and Executive Council

By: On:
'

Page I of 4
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J. EMPLOYMENT OFCONTRACTOR/SERVICESTO
BE PERFORMED. The State ofNew Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block I. I ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, ideniifted and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which Is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council epprove this Agreement as Indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement Is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effcciive Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to (he EfTeciive Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7. ^

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Nocwithstartding any provision of ̂is Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of piayments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the Stale shall have the right to withhold
payment until such fimds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds f>t>m any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

3.1 The contract price, method of payment. aj>d terms of
payment ore identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete relmbunement to the Contractor for all
expenses.'of whatever nature incurred by the Conoactor in the
performance hereof, and shell be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Slices. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstarvding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMEfn'
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, counry or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive Information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to<prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreerrtent is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State ofNew Hampshire or the United States Issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United Sutes access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contnicting Officer specified in block 1.9. or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. eVUNTGF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Cbncractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
("Event of Defauii"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
6.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Stale
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a wrinen notice speci^'ing the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two ■
(2) days affer giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Conoractor during the
period fiom the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information'arK) things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files,' formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Stale or purchased with funds provided for thai purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the Stale.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver lo the Contracting
Offlcer. not later than fifteen (IS) days after the date of
lerminBticn, a report ("Termination Report") describing In
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the anached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE, in

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent conuacior, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the Siate. Neither the Contractor nor any of iu
ofTicers; employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATI0N/SU8C0NTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
Sute, Its ofTicers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or.on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of tfiis Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in rorce. and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability Insurance against ail
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage. In amounts
of not less than $ I .OOO.OOOper occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than Z(i% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting OfTiccr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OfTicer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certiiicdie(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certincate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
Incorporated herein by reference. Each certificalc(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is In compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Worktrs' Comptnsalion ").
15.2 To Che extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9,'or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation taws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

Id. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default.shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the .
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed lo have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by cenified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto and only af^er approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
Inures to the benefit of the panics and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the panics to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be ,
constmed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplily or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV^ In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent Jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in f^ll force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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ScoDe of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30, 2019. and the. Department shall not be liable for
any payments for services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature
and funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 biennia.

1.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Subreciplent, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.5. The Contractor shall provide contracted services to families living in the City of
Manchester.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall develop Community Implementation Teams (CITs). which
may include, but are not limited to;

2.1.1. Evidence-based prevention programs, including programs with
existing Department supported services.

2.1.2. Court diversion and family court programs.

2.1.3. Programs that offer alternative dispositions for juveniles.

2.1.4. Community agencies and providers who serve families with children
up to eight years of age.

2.1.5. Public Health Networks.

2.1.6. Family Resource Centers.

2.1.7. Integrated Delivery Networks.

2.1.8. DHHS District Offices

2.2. The Contractor shall create, coordinate, administer and rnanage Community
Implementations Teams (CIT) that:

2.2.1. Work with the Evaluator and DHHS to complete arxj submit a
practice plan and a federal project plan. Participate in Plan Do Study
Act - Revise (PDSA-R) cycles to increase saturation and scale of
evidence-based prevention practices.

Mandiesiar Communiy HaaRh Cantef Exhlbft A Coolractof Initiab
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2.2.2. Plan, coordinate, ar>d implement Boundary Spanning Leadership

2.2.3. Hire a Community Implementation Team Coordinator.

2.2.4. Purchase supporting materials

2.2.5. Provide on-site fac6*to>face training to providers.

2.3. The Contractor shall utilize the results of the environmental scan and the needs

assessment (Section 2.9) in conjunction with Department input, to provide
planning, technical assistance, and face-to-face training on targeted topics, as
determined by the Department, which may include, but are not limited to;

2.3.1. Evidence-based and/or evidence-informed parental education on:

2.3.1.1. Current impact of adverse childhood experiences

2.3.1.2. Baseline or foundational understanding of toxic stress levels
for families in the community and in the CIT sites.

2.3.1:3. Policies and programs that promote, sen/e and retum
knowledge, behaviors and practices between parents and
children that:

2.3.1.3.1. Prevent abuse and neglect.

2.3.1.3.2. Strengthen positive parenting.

2.3.1.4. Programs that will assist families with identifying and
addressing risk factors that could lead to contact with the
child welfare system.

2.3.1.5. Delivery of trauma-Informed care across the continuum for
individuals and families with children up to 6 years of age.

2.3.1.6. Strategies, that support the needs of families who have had
involvement with the Division for Children, Youth and
Families resulting in unfounded allegation of abuse or
neglect with:

2.3.1.6.1. Reasonable concern.

2.3.1.6.2. Parental substance use.

2.3.1.6.3. Discovery of economic or social challenges.

2.3.1.6.4. Strategies for working with children impacted
by familial substance use disorder.

2.3.1.6.5. Training and strategies for supporting the
needs of young children and families from
various cultures and languages.

2.3.1.6.6. Training, coaching and implementation of
Boundary Spanning Leadership (BSL)
strategies.

2.'4. The Contractor shall coordinate trainings with a variety of agencies, including
other CITs, to ensure trainings are developed, planned and aligned with

MsnehHter Community Health C«nler ExhbitA ConlrictorlnHiab
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evidence-based services that are culturally and linguistically competent and
most appropriate for the target audience needs.

2.5. Contractor shall ensure that afl training includes instruction and guidance
relating to safeguarding confidentiality of individually identifiable or protected
health information, as required by state or federal law or regulations.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure sen/ices and supports offered to families in their
respective areas of service complement existing state prograrhs.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure a CIT Coordinator is assigned job duties that
include, but are not lirtiited to;

2.7.1. Working with team members to draft meeting agendas and meeting
notes.

2.7.2. Conducting local needs assessments.

2.7.3. Leading program-planning efforts.

2.7.4. Identifying and engaging new and existing community partners to
plan and strategize implementation.

2.7.5. Representing the Contractor at statewide meetings.

2.7.6. Leading the development of a Practice Profile as it relates to
evaluation'and service provision.

2.7.7. Facilitating, drafting, and finalizing CIT project work plan, timeline,
and logic model to align with OHMS project logic model and timeline;

2.7.8. Coordinating CIT data definition establishment and data collection
according to state and federal regulations

2.8. The Contractor shall offer parenting education and economic support services
and shall utilizing evidence-based strategies that align with the Administration
for Children and Families (ACF) child abuse and neglect strategies including,
but not limited to strengthening protective factors, ensuring the services are
accessible, available to, and designed to target a diverse population', which
includes, but is not limited to:

2.8.1. Pregnant or parenting individuals.

2.8.2.. Individuals and all family types with children up to eight (6) years of
age.

2.8.3. Caregivers, professionals, foster parents, grandparents.

2.9. The Contractor shall ensure the CIT conducts a needs
assessment/environmental scan to determine the training needs of the
organization that provide services to families. The Contractor shall ensure the
CIT is able to:

2.9.1. Determine the extent to which professionals require training in:

2.9.1.1. Adverse childhood experiences.

2.9.1.2. Toxic stress.

2.9.1.3. . Trauma-informed care.

Manche#tflrCommuniryH««Bh Center EihibrtA Contreaor mWala
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2.9.1.4. Substance use disorders (SUO).

2.9.2. Measure respondent capacity to identify and address risk factors
among family members that could result in contact with the child
welfare system.

2.9.3. Determine respondent ability to address the needs of young children
and families from various cultures and languages.

2.9.4. Inquire about training in particular evidence-based curricula.

2.10. The Contractor shall define strengths and gaps among service providers and
shall identify needs for training upon the completion and evaluation of a survey.

2.11. The Contractor shall develop a roster of training opportunities for professionals
and parents that utilized evidence-based practices and programming with input
from the CIT and working groups.

2.12. The Contractor shall enlist the subject-matter expertise of CIT members and
other community partners to host training sessions that ensure accommodates
for the entire region. The Contractor shall:

2.12.1. Maintain a record of all trainers'and ensure the trainers are qualified
to teach their respective courses.

2.12.2. Ensure that any education programs collecting PHI that are
delivered on-line or on a website meet NH DolT requirements,

2.12.3. Provide all materials, equipment, and physical space, as well as.
logistical and staff support for the services and prevention and
education programs delivered.

2.13. The Contractor shall ensure evidence-based, culturally and linguistically
competent, prevention-focused parental assistance programs are available
within the community (Section 1.5) and are designed to:

2.13.1. Reduce child maltreatment.

2.13.2. Improve parent-child interactions.

2.13.3. Improve skills to regulate behavior and cope adaptively.

2.13.4. Improve coordination of services and referrals for young families.

2.14. The Contractor shall erasure a variety of prevention services are available to
parents of children up to eight (8) years of age. which may include, but are not
limited to:

,  2.14.1. Home visiting.

2.14.2. Parent education.

2.14.3. Family support services, including respite or crisis care.

2.15. The Contractor shall integrate the Five Protective Factors into the prevention
services to promote healthy development and well-being of children through:

2.15.1. Parental resilience.

2.15.2. Knowledge of parenting and child development.

Mancftwtef Community HeoBn C«nio» Exhibit A Contractof lniU»b _6
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2.15.3. Social connections.

2.15.4. Concrete supports in times of need.

2.15.5. Social and emotional competence.

2.16. The Contractor shall promote prevention and service programs through
outreach and marketing in order to inaease parent and community awareness
of services maximizing;

2.16.1. Attendance to events for families with children up to eight (8) years
of age.

2.16.2. Attendance to professional development opportunities.

2.16.3. Awareness of community resources available in the state, region,
and nationally.

2.17. The Contractor shall ensure professionals are trained to support, advise, and
guide families by focusing on prevention and elimination of child abuse and
neglect by training providers on;

2.17.1. Period of Purple Crying;

2.17.2. Strengthening Families Approach.

2.18. The Contractor shall utilize its current relationships in the community to
continue improving coordination of services and referrals.

2.19. The Contractor shall have a minimum of one representative acceptable to the
Department physically present at local and regional meetings to provide

'  opportunities to build credibility and likeability among other providers in order
to ensure local and regional agencies are confident referring clients for support
and services.

2.20. The Contractor shall implement a Community Outreach and Marketing plan
that ensures families throughout the region are aware of parental assistance
programs through mediums that include, but are not limited to:

2.20.1. Social Media • The Contractor shall develop posts that promote
evidence based parent support programs to target consumers and
providers.

2.20.2. Traditional Media - The Contractor shall develop press releases
announcing grant, programs, special events, inserts , in calendar
listings.

2.20.3. Website and Email • The Contractor shall create content to promote
programs on the website, blogs, and email distribution list.

2.20.4. Grassroots Outreach • The Contractor shall develop flyers and
submit to the Department for approval, upon approval the flyers shall
be distributed and posted at community-based locations. The flyers

. shall give credit to the Department for the funding.

2.20.5. Networking • The Contractor shall partner with community-based
providers to promote programs through their social media channels,
websites, email lists and program recipients.

<
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2.21. The Contractor shall ensure ongoing implementation efforts which may
include, but are not limited to;

2.21.1. Tracking performance measures .specific to the GIT multi-sectoral
Interventions.

2.21.2. POSA-R cycles for quality improvement.

2.21.3. Collecting and participating In evaluation activities Intended to result
in:

2.21.3.1. Increase of effectiveness of population based prevention.

2.21.3.2. Increase in protective factors.

2.21.3.3. Reduction In child maltreatment reports.

3. DATA TRACKING

3.1. The Contractor shall maintain an Outcome Tracking System, as approved by
the Department, which shall be implemented during the second year of the
resulting contract.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure the Outcome Tracking System is utilized to
capture local performance metrics consistent with targeted prevention efforts
determined through the comprehensive planning process during the first year
of contracted services. The Contractor shall:

3.2.1. Provide a fully managed Information Technology (IT) department to
that Includes, but is.not limited to:

3.2.1.1. Dedicated response team.

3.2.1.2. Cybersecurity;

3.2.1.3. Dedicated response'team with knowledge of state and
federal privacy laws;

3.2.2. Participate in Plan Do Study Act -Revise (PDSA-R) cycles to
Increase saturation and scale of evidence-based prevention
practice.

3.2.3. Disseminate and review data at regular intervals with community
partners for continuous quality improvement efforts, POSA-R cycles,
and data-based decision efforts.

3.2.4. Track local data and monitor process and outcome irvjicators
involved in the BSL method and GIT implementation.

3.2.5. Invite the evaluation team to attend CIT meetings In order to provide
training on the importance of the evaluation, specifics on data
collection and reporting.

3.3. The Contractor shall develop plans to share non-personally identifiable data
with the Department that includes, but is not limited to:

3.3.1. Pre-defined regional data definitions.

3.3.2. Measures of success.

3.3.3. Indicators of success to inform shared outcome metrics.
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3.3.4. Personal characteristics and experiences of participants.

3.4. The Contractor shall work collat)oratively with the State-identified Evaluation
Contractor. This work shall include, but is not limited to:

3.4.1. Facilitate cross-system data definition processes and manage a
shared-outcomes defining process and outcomes tracking system
which shall include, but is not limited to:

3.4.1.1. Identification of indicators of success to inform shared
outcome metrics within CIT.

3.4.1.2. Personal characteristics, challenges, barriers, and
experiences of parent and community organization
participants.

3.4.1.3. Sharing of pre-defined regional data definitions.

3.4..1.4. Establishment of shared measures of success.

3.4.1.5. Establishment and implementation of data collection, data
sharing agreements, security, and monitoring procedures
standards, consistent with ail state and federal laws and
regulations relating to confidentiality, privacy and
information security.

3.4.1.6. Coordination of local data tracking and monitoring of
process and outcome indicators involved in the Boundary
Spanning Leadership (6SL) method and CIT
implementation.

3.4.1.7. Participate in Data Work Group Committee to contribute
feedback to the design and development of the Outcome
Tracking System. This includes, but is not limited to:

3.4.1.8. Participation in outcomes tracking system training and
technical assistance.

3.4.1.9. Submission of Outcome Tracking System data at regularly
defined Intervals for purpose of the program evaluation.

3.4.2. Explore, incorporate and document concepts, methods, population
and performance-based data and tools that make cross-sectoral
work more successful and increase the value of collective'
leadership.

3.4.3. Conduct a needs assessment/environmental scan of: services, CIT
child-abuse neglect prevention focus evidence-based (kactices,
training and technical assistance needs of community providers.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall submit annual and interim reports on process end
outcome measures for each area under study for quality improvement and
recommendations. No personally identifiable data shall be included in these
reports.

ManchMlor Community Haolih Caniaf ■ Exhibit A Conuiaof inltiaU ^
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4.2. The Contractor, in conjunction with the GIT, shall connplete and submit a
Practice Plan no later than ninety (90) days after the contract effective date.

S. Performance Measures

5.1. Tf>e Contractor shall ensure a minimum of 90% of Its GIT members participate
in 6SL training.

5.2. The Contractor shall track two (2) phases of performance measurement:

5.2.1. Year1: Performance Measures for Planning Period, which includes,
but is not limited to:

5.2.1.1. Every six (6) months. 90% of GIT membership will
participate in BSL training workshops and evaluation
activities.

5.2.1.2. . Every six (6) months, 90% of CIT membership will
participate In evaluation baseline and measurement studies
such as surveys focus groups and/or in-depth interviews, as
appropriate to project activities.

5.2.1.3. CIT teams shall attend 90% of coaching sessions.

5.2.2. Year 2: The Contractor shall work with the Department to set
performance measures for Year 2, at the conclusion of Year 1.

5.3. The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan for any
'  performance measure not achieved to the Department.

w ̂
Manchester Convnuniy Health Center Exhibit A Contractor Inittab, .
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Method and Conditions Precedisnt to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with Federal Funds, CFDA #93.670, DHHS, Administration
for Children and Families, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN), #90CA1858and
General Funds.

3. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and/or future funding.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

'4.VPayment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item, as specified in Exhibits B-1. Budget through Exhibit B-3, Budget.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20^'') working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to initiate payment.

4.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

5. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after.the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

7. All invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

8. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, In whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement. a

Manchotter Community Health Center E*ha)il 8 Contractor Initials .
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10. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Manch«$lef Community Health C«nler ExNbhB Comratfo< initiab—„—^—
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SPFfilAI PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants; the Contractor hereby covenant and
agrees as follows:

1. ComplUinco with Federal and State Lews; If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time artd Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data hie on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
Information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may-request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Oralulties or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed In Exhibit A'of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sutH^tract or sub^agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any ofTiCials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to tfie Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate

which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement irv

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Spedtl Provisions Contractor Irtitiab,
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute en Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permiRed to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

e. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specifted above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during (he Contract Period:

6.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents end other.data evidencing and reflecting ell costs
end other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the CoritracL and ad
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contraci Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufTiciently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department and
to include, without limitation, all lagers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase'requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and o^er records requested or required by the
Department ■

6.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, anendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forrris required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of sen/ices and all invoices submiRed to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

6.3. Medical Records; Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regutat'ions, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
OfHce of Management end Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder; the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audlL examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2, Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way In limitation of obligations of the Contract, it Is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions artd shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shallnot
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the edministraUon of the services and the Contract; and provided fur^er, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder Is prohibited except on wriRen consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian. UfAx
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

It. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefollowing
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written Interim ftnandal reports containing a detailed descriptionof

all costs and non<allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to

^  ' justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shad be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall t>e submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summery statement of progress toward goals artd objectives stated in the Proposal
and other Information required by the Department

12. Completion of ̂ rvlcoa: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for In the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the er^ of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the anv)unt of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents. r>otices. press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Heatth and Human Services, with fur)ds provided In part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulatlone: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to taws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be requir^'for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP|: The Contractor v/ill provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the redpient receives $25,000 or nx)re and has 50 or

Exhibh C - special Provbiona Convactor Initlab.
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that Its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educatior^al institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification'form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/certpdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons vrith Limited English Proficiency, end resulting egency guidance, nafionalorigin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Sate Streets Act of 1S68 and Title vi of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whlstleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simpllfi^ Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currenUy. $150,000)

Contractop Employee whistleblcwer Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblcm/er Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees worVIng on this contract will be sut^ect to the whlstleblower rights
and remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whlstleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees In writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whlstleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described In section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the.substance of this clause. Including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractore: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain heatth care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the suticontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This ts accomplished through a wrinen agreement that specifies activities and reportir>g
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions If
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Ckmtractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall ̂ o the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perforTn the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's'
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on en ongoing basis

0»1V18
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

- if the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas for improvemenl are identined, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and Indirect Items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state end federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTf^ENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by (he Department arxl containing a description of the services end/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible Individudls hereunder. shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhlbil C - Special ProvTiioAS Contractor Inibab
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.V Section 4 Conditional Nature of Aoreemenl. is replaced as follows:

A. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, at) obligalions of the State
hereunder. Including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent chartges to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
minifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided In Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no .event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in ex<^s of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modificatibn of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to vnthhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(8) Identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account
Numt)er. or any other account in the event funds ere reduced or ur\available.

1.2. Section 10, Tgrmlnation. is amended by adding the following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any lime for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of earty
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present end future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement end establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contrector shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the Slate
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, ir^luding but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communicddons in Its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon sab'sfactory delivery of services, avaiiabie funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Exhit>n C-1 - R0vi9iOA»/Excap(iOfl9 to SUndoid.Controo Leoguofle Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG^REE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Piib. L 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections
1.11 and 1:12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDtVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Worlcplacc Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq ). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they v/ill maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation.of the ̂rtification shad be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a cont/olled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph'(a) that, as a condition of

emptoyrT>ent under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying .the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from en employee or othenivise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. Including posiUon title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

f
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such r>olices. Notice shall include the
Identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the follov^ng actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency:

1.7. ' Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation Of paragraphs 1.1,1.2. 1.3. 1.4, i.S, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the' space provided below the sitefs) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Vendor Name:

Name:
Title;

Exhlbil 0 - CertncsUon regarding Drug Fre» Vendor Iniil&U
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CERTIFtCATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor iderttified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Tide IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under TiOe IV-O „
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

»

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wlli.be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modificalion of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this cerbficab'on be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification Is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required >
certification shad t>e subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

—

CxNbK E - Ccrtificition ReQtrdlng Lobbying Vondor InHiala
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPOMSIBIUTY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with Ute provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below wilt not necessarily result In denial
of participation In this covered trartsaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification of explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective prirnary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualrty such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If it Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if et any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,' 'debarred,' 'suspended.' 'ineligible.' 'lower tier covered
•  transaction.' 'participant,' 'person.' 'primary covered, transaction.' 'priiKipal,* 'proposal,' and
•voiunlariiy excluded,' as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by subrriiiting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibilily and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered iransaction that It is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method end frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
In order lo render in good fakh the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

ExhlWl F - Reflifdlng Oeberment. Suapentton Vendor Inlttolt ' ' -
And Other Re$pon»l5lIilyMittere 3
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information of a participant is not require to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from, participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default. ,

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and t>elief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntanly excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicled of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission.of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statennents. or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certincation; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in (his
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing end submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospecbve lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certines to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and Its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the at>ove, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that.it will
Include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibility. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' without nrx^ification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name;

|l Nar^^
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondischmlr\ation requirements, which may Include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3769d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employmeni Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act ol 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements:

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2OD0d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discriminabon and ensures equal opportunity for persons with diMbilities in employment. State end local
government services, public accornmodations. commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1663, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial .assistance. It does not Include
eraployment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Resides
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); ̂ ecudve Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); ar^ Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in conrteclion with federal grants and contracts.

The certificdte set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the granL False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State adminisiraiive agency makes a finding of
discrimination afler a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicdt>le contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated ebove.

Vendor Name:'

Name:

TiUe: •

tmn4

A««.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Sfnoke. also known as the Pro-Children Act of 19S4
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contracL loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1,12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contracL the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
aO applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: •

Exhibit CertifluUon Regarding Vendor Initiab.
EnvCrorimenUiTobaccoSmoke f A*?
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEWENT

\

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 1.60 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate* shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entitv' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aaareoation' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. ^

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of ■1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term "individuar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personai representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HlPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. >

3/2014 ExWMI Vandof Ittftltb V
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I. 'Reouired bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law' in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretarv' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Sen/Ices or
his/her designee.

n. 'Securitv Rule' shall moan the Security Standards for the Protection of ElecUonlc Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a starvdards'developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions • All terms not otheoA^lse defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Paris 160. 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Furlher. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rulis.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate. In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business /

Exhibit I Vendoi Iftltiah Ir '
Health ln«urvK« PonibOity Ad y i j
Builneaa Aitodate Agreemeni
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Oblioatlonft and Activitiea of Business Asaoclate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
heatth information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity..

b. The Busirvess Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of reHdenliflcation;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to v^ich the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment In writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of ils business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the.Agreement. to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use arxJ disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivlnq P^

Eihlbil I Vender InlUais
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnificatjon from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard .
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Busirvess Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable. '

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retair^ any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business lyo ̂
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObliQations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to (he extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affed Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to-Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the

. alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneoua

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive, the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health aiv] Human Services y\ A ajjJLuUa tfmm
St _ Naniexf the Vendor ^

Signature of Authonzed Representative Signaure 6f Authorized Representative

Name of Authonzed Representative Narae^f Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative ■ Title of Authorized Representative

Date Date
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CERTiFICATiON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABiLITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT iFFATAl COMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees orindividual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded ori or after October 1. 2010, to report on
data related to executh/e compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modincations result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report the following Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts/CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and (hose
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Informabon Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.
I

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined al>ove to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with ail applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act

Vendor Name:

Date ^ Name:

Exhibit J - C«rtl5c«lion R»g«rtfng tti« F«d«r«i FunOing Vei>do< InlUats
Accountability And Traniparancy Act (FFATA) Compllanco
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FORMA

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is;

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percenter nx)re of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants. 8ul>-grant5. and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. arvj/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to 02 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to Information about the compensabon of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section i6104 of the.lnlemal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount

Amount:

Amount:

Amount

cuOKHS/Moni
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Oefmitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach* means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure',
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information,' Breach' shall have the same rrteaning as the term 'Breach* in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident' in section two (2) of MIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information* or 'Confidential Data' means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal Information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal taw or regulation. This Information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Informalion (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Pohability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident' means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without (he owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, ail of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

6. 'Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19. blometric records, etc.,
alone, or\when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked,
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information' (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security. Star^dards for the Protection of Electronic
Protect^ Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subparl C. and amendments
thereto.

IZ^'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transrnit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by addiUonal
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must t>e bound by such
additional restrictions ar»d must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said

,  application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data. -

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Sen/ices, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mall Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Commuriication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmined or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sut>-(olders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24rhour auto-detetion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSmON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and ariy
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NM systems
and/or Department confidential infonmation for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anii-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion«detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its
subcontractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documenliad process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as descrit>ed in NISI Special Publication 600-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for. Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destructiorr', and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the tenmination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a

^  secure method such as shredding.
3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this

Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and-secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided eystems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor wilj be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor vrill work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department syslem(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable subcontractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the ContVactor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an attemate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level end scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § S52a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish artd maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doitA/endor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which effects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire r>etwork.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Cor^tractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI, or
PR are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure, from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as norvduty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
btometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable Information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section iV above.

h.- in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user aedentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and coriipliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the rigtit to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with (his
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section Vl.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breachesjnvolving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Inddents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of locidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

vs. Lastupdato ICVOS/IS Exhibit K COAtraaorlniUeb.
DHHS Information

Sacuiity RaQulrements
Page S of 9 Data
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New Harrpehire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notrfrcation methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

,  DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformatlonSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

vs. L«9t update 10/09/10 Exhibit K Contractor Initiais.
DHHS Infonnallon

Security Raquiramants
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families '

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families Contract

This 2'^ Amendment to the Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Lakes Region
Community Services, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of
business at 719 North Main Street, Laconia, NH 03246.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 31, 2019, (Item #18), as amended on August 26, 2020, (Item #19), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: V

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2023.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,551,925.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services Section 3 Data Tracking, to read:

3. Reporting Requirements and Data Entry

3.1. The Contractor shall, for the purposes of program evaluation and federal reporting,
enter personally identifiable health data for all program participants into the
QuickBase data system. The Protective Factors Surveys Online Data System
(PFSODS) will also be used to collect parent surveys.

3.2 The Contractor shall maintain and collect data from the Outcome Tracking System,
QuickBase, the Contractor shall collect the following:

3.2.1. Parent Data:

3.2.1.1 First, Last Name

3.2.1.2 DOB;

3.2.1.3. Medicaid ID;

3.2.1.4. Address;

3.2.1.5. Phone;

3.2.1.6. Town/City;

3.2.1.8. State;

3.2.1.9. Zip Code;

3.2.1.10. Email;

3.2.1.11. Other Languages Spoken

Lakes Region Community Services Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A02 Page 1 of 7 Date 1/5/2021
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

3.2.2.

3.2.1.12. Parent Education Status;

3.2.1.13. Sex;

3.2.1.14. Ethnicity;

3.2.1.15. Race;

3.2.116. Marital Status;

3.2.1.17. Household composition;

3.2.1.18. Military Family;

3.2.1.19. Disability status;

3.2.1.20. Employment status;

3.2.1.21. Health insurance status;

3.2.1.22. Housing type;

3.2.1.23. Transportation;

3.2.1.24. Public Assistance;

3.2.1.25. Telecommunications / Internet;

3.2.1.26. Preferred language

Child Data:

3.2.2.1. First, Last;

3.2.2.2. DOB / Age in Years;

3.2.2.3. Child Primarily Lives With & Re

3.2.2.4. Child Preferred Language;

3.2.3. All encounters captured in the QuickBase data system with the family
members which shall include but not limited to:

3.2.3.1. Types of services and service dates.

3.2.3.2. Dates and types of supports provided to the family such as: parent
education classes, support groups, home visits, virtual visits, and access to
concrete supports.

3.2.4. All service referrals captured within the QuickBase data system to partner
agencies which include:

3.2.4.1. Date of referral.

3.2.4.2. Purpose of referral.

3.2.4.3. Name of agency referred to.

3.3. The Contractor shall obtain parental release/authorization to share Name, DOB and
statistical information with the Department and the contractor will share the following
data with the Department:

3.3.1. Parent Data:

3.3.1.1 First, Last name

3.3.1.2 DOB;

3.3.1.3. Medicaid ID;

Lakes Region Community Services Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A02 Page2of7 Date 1/5/2021
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

3.3.1.4 QuickBase Family and Participant ID;

3.3.1.5. Town/City/ Zip Code; 3.3.1.6. Other Languages Spoken;

3.3.1.7. Parent Education Status;

3.3.1.8. Sex;

3.3.1.9. Ethnicity;

3.3.1.10. Race;

3.3.1.11. Marital Status;

3.3.1.12. Household composition;

3.3.1.13. Military Family;

3.3.1.14. Disability status;

3.3.1.15. Employment status;

3.3.1.16. Health insurance status;

3.3.1.17. Housing type;

3.3.1.18. Transportation;

3.3.1.19. Public Assistance;

3.3.1.20. Telecommunications/ Internet;

3.3.1.21. Preferred language

3.3.1.22. PFS-2 Concrete Supports Subscale Parental Survey

3.3.1.23. PFS-2 Retrospective (Pre/Post) Parental Survey

,3.3.2. Child Data:

3.3.2.1. First, Last Name

3.3.2.2. DOB / Age in Years ;

3.3.2.3. QuickBase Family and Participant ID;

3.3.2.4. Child Primarily Lives With & Relationship to Child;

3.3.2.5. Child Preferred Language;

3.3.3. All encounters captured within the QuickBase data system provided with the
family members, which shall include, but is not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Type of contact with the family and Date.

3.3.3.2. Type of services and supports and Date provided to the family,
which includes:

3.3.3.2.1. Parent support groups, parent education classes;

3.3.3.2.2. Individual crisis support and educational topics
reviewed during contact with the family such as injury prevention,
nurturing and attachment, etc; and

3.3.3.2.3 Concrete supports provided including facilitating
access to EITC and economic resources.

3.3.4. All service referrals captured in the QuickBase data system, whiehoshall
include, but is not limited to:

Lakes Region Community Services Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A02 Page 3 of 7 Date 1/5/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: B0E32D1F-4A34-45AE-AFAO-8389DC12D335

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

3.3.4.1. Referral date.

3.3.4.2. Referral purpose.

3.3.4.3. Name of agency referred to.

3.4. The Contractor shall utilize the PFSODS to collect parental surveys which are used
as a tool to measure increases in parental protective factors as well as to determine
immediate needs and inform service planning during the family intake process.

3.5. The Contractor shall provide to the Department at least quarterly new Protective
Factors Surveys completed for each parent enrolled in the Community
Collaborations program. The PFS-2 Concrete Supports Subscale Survey shall be
completed at the intake stage to determine immediate needs and assist in initial

service planning with the family. The PFS-2 Retrospective Survey shall be
completed at 6 months and can be repeated and/or after at least 12 hours of services
received by the family. The surveys sent to the Department shall include:

3.3.1. PFS-2 Concrete Supports Subscale survey: and

3.3.2. PFS-2, Retrospective (pre/post) Survey

3.6. The Contractor shall ensure the Outcome Tracking System is HIPPA Compliant with
42 CFR Part 2 in the event that any of the information is either a Part 2 record or
information, and compliant with all applicable state confidentiality laws, and is utilized
to capture local performance metrics consistent with targeted prevention efforts
determined through the pre-implementation planning period of Community
Collaborations. The Contractor shall:

3.6.1. Participate in Plan Do Study Act -Revise (PDSA-R) cycles to increase
saturation and scale of evidence-based prevention practice.

3.6.2. Use the Predict, Align, Prevent data modeling to inform targeted service
innovations within the contractor community which should include
engagement with state, PAP program staff, community implementation
team members and update to the evaluator on what those planned
innovations are as outlined in the Plan Do Study Act cycles.

3.6.3. Disseminate and review data at regular intervals with community partners
for continuous quality Improvement efforts, PDSA-R cycles, and data-based
decision efforts.

3.6.4. Track local data and monitor process and outcome indicators involved in the
Boundary Spanning Leadership (BSL) framework and Community
Implementation Team (GIT) implementation.

3.6.5. Invite the evaluation team to attend GIT meetings in order to provide training
on the importance of the evaluation, specifics on data collection and
reporting.

3.6.6. Engage in pre-implementation trainings such as: (1) QuickBase data
platform, (2) Protective Factors Survey-2 tool administration and (3)
Onboarding Staff to data collection relating to Data Collection and family
engagement in the intake process.

3.7. The Contractor shall work collaboratively under the direction of the Department, with
the State-identified Evaluation Contractor. This work shall include, but is not limited
to:

3.7.1. Facilitating cross-system data definition processes and managing a sjjared-
outcomes defining process and outcomes tracking system w^h shall

Lakes Region Communily Services Amendment #2 Contractor Initials I
SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A02 Page4of7 Date
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include, but is not limited to;

3.7.1.1. Identification of indicators of success to Inform shared

outcome metrics within GIT.

3.7.1.2. Personal characteristics, challenges, barriers, and
experiences of parent and community organization
participants.

3.7.1.3. Sharing of pre-defined regional data definitions.

3.7.1.4. Establishment of shared measures of success.

3.7.1.5. Establishment and implementation of data collection, data
sharing agreements, security, and monitoring procedures
standards, consistent with all state and federal laws and
regulations relating to confidentiality, privacy and information
security.

3.7.1.6. Coordination of local data tracking and monitoring of process
and outcome indicators involved in the Boundary Spanning
Leadership (BSL) method and GIT implementation.

3.7.1.7. Participation in outcomes tracking system training and
technical assistance.

3.7.1.8. Submission of Outcome Tracking System data at regularly
defined intervals for purpose of the program evaluation.

3.8.2. Explore, incorporate and document concepts, methods, population and
performance-based data and tools that make cross-sectoral work more
successful and increase the value of collective impact.

3.9.3. Gonduct a needs assessment/environmental scan of: services, GIT child-
abuse neglect prevention focus evidence-based practices, training and
technical assistance needs of community providers.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services Section 4 Reporting, Subsection 4.1, to read:

4.1 The Gontractor shall submit annual and interim reports on process and outcome measures
for each area under study for quality improvement and recommendations.

5. Exhibit B, .Methods and Gonditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, Subsection 4.1, to read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as specified
in Exhibits B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-5 Amendment #2, Budget.

6. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #2, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

7. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #2, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

w

Lakes Region Community Services

SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A02

Amendment #2
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Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/6/2021

Date

—OopuSigntd by:

/^OWlv
— Og3aOBFBeCAS4AO...

NameiLisa m. Morris

Title:
Director, Division of Public Health srvcs.

1/5/2021

Date

Lakes Region Community Services

-DocuSigntd by:

10e0EE937SOC4G0...

Name: Rebecca Bryant
Title:

CEO

Lakes Region Community Services

RFP-2019-DPHS-23-COMMU-01-A02

Amendment #2

'Page 6 of 7
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaboratlons to Strengthen and Preserve Families

The preceding Amendment, having been reviev/ed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSton*4 by:

1/6/2021
OSCA9202E32C4AE-

Date Name: Catherine Pinos
Title:

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Lakes Region Community Sen/ices Amendment #2

RFP-2019-DPHS-23-COMMU-01-A02 Page 7 of 7
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Sccrctar)' of Sloic of the Stole of New Hampshire, do hereby certify ihm LAKES REGION

COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on July 29. 1975. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretory ofSlotc's office have been
received and is in good standing m for as this office is concerned.

fiusinc.ss ID: 64109

Certificate Number; 0004886293

Urn

O ■0

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 2nd day of April A.D, 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I. Jeanin Onos . hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secrelary/Officer of _Lakes Region Community Services Council
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Oirectors/sharehotders, duly called and
held on ̂ December 16. . 2020 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That ̂ Rebecca Bryant, President and CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of .Lakes Region Community Services Council, to enter into contracts or agreements
with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this ceriiHcate is attached. This authority riemalns valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posilion(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:_
lature of ETe^ed Officer

f^me: Jeanin Onos
Title: Treasurer

Rev. 03/24/20



Client#; 1842747 LAKESREG5

ACORD^ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

1/07/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

12 Gill Street Suite 5500

Woburn, MA 01801

855 874-0123

Elizabeth Mailhot

Kn 855 874-0123 h.v. 781 -376-5035

AnrwFM- Elizabeth.Mailhot@usi.com
INSURER(8) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAice

INSURER A Philadelphia Insurance Company 32204

INSURED

Lakes Region Community Services Council
719 North Main Street

Laconia, NH 03246

INSURER B Granite State Work Comp Manuf

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE S4AY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL

ItiS&
SUBR

POLICY NUMBER
POUCY EFF

IMM/DOfYYYYI
POUCY EXP

tMM/OD/YYYYi UMrrs

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

PHPK2206844 12/01/2020 12/01/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE

; M iSES fEa oSfr^ncal
MED EXP (Any one paxon)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO-
POLICY L _J JECT□ S LOG

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

OTHER:

$1.000.000
$100.000
$5.000
$1.000.000
$3,000,000
$3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY PHPK2206840 12/01/2020 12/01/2021 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa acdtMnil t1,000,000

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par panon)
SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par acddant)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par acddanil

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS4MDE

PHUB746405 12/01/2020 12/01/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE $5.000.000
AGGREGATE $5.000.000

X RETENTION$10.000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY y / N
ANY PROPRIETOfUPARTNER/EXECUTtVEl—1OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? | N \
(Mar>datory In NH)
11 yat. datolba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

WC0120211002953 01/01/2021 01/01/2022 V PER
A STATUTE

OTH
ER-

E.U. EACH ACCIDENT $1.000.000
E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1.000.000
E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT I $1,000,000

Abuse

Professional

PHPK2206844

PHPK2206844
12/01/2020

12/01/2020

12/01/2021
12/01/2021

$1,000,000/$3,000,000
$1,000.000/$3,000,000
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health & Human
Services

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WIU BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE wrTH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
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The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Value Statements

As individuals and as a community agency, we:

> Value all people;
> Value a team approach in all we do;
> Value and respect one another;
> Value our relationships in the communities in which we live and work;
> Value our role as facilitators of relationships; and
> Value and recognize that our relationships evolve, grow, and change over time.
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To the Board of Directors of

Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc.
Laconia, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Lakes Region Community
Services Council, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of
financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of cash flows,
and notes to the financial statements for the years then ended, and the related statements
of activities and functional expenses for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
.financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc. as of
June 30. 2020 and 2019, and its cash flows for the years then ended, and the changes in
its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2020 in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited the Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc.'s June
30. 2019 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated October 9, 2019. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has
been derived. ^

Report on Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole. The schedule of functional revenues on pages 20-22 is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards,
as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated October 9, 2020, on our consideration of Lakes Region Community Services
Council, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Lakes Region Community Services Council,
Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
-October 9, 2020
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LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL. INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable:

Medicaid

Other, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $50,000

at June 30, 2020 and 2019
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

OTHER ASSETS

Due from affiliates, net

Deposits

Total other assets

Total assets

2020

$  6,090,997

2,560,926

443,943

53,598

9,149.464

3,454,418

79,985
37,779

117,764

2019

$  4,663,758

612,598

286,337
29,132

5,591,825

3,444,274

57,267
37.779

95,046

S  12 721 646. $ 9131 145

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued salaries, wages, and related expenses
Accrued earned time

Refundable advances

Other accrued expenses '

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

State of NH - Emergency Healthcare System Relief loan

Paycheck Protection Program loan

Total long term liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

1,111.944

616,961

335,958

160,55f
380,797

2,606,211

50:000
2,739,774

2,789,774

5,395,985

6,074,046
1,251,615

7,325,661

723,422

452,517

305,524

121,549

146.557

1,749,569

1,749,569

6,079,798
1,301,778

7,381,576

S  12721 646 S 9 131 145

See Notes to Financial Statements
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LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL. INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions 2020 2019

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Revenues

Program fees $  1,531,460 $ $  1,531,460 $  1,478,072

Medicaid 22,409,638 - 22,409,638 21,326,918

Client resources 93,447. - 93,447 97,250
Other third party payers 1,463 - 1,463 5,281

Public support 533,685 . 533,685 490,077

Private foundations 192,163 - 192,163 78,500

Production/service income 119,584 - 119,584 169,225

Investment 24,647 - 24,647 24,491
State of New Hampshire - DOS 1,368,101 - 1,368,101 1,322,817

Management fees 14,400 - 14,400 14,616

Other 1,213,220 - 1,213.220 452,977

Total revenues 27.501,808 27,501,808 25,460,224

Expenses
Program services

Service coordination 1,057,722 - 1,057,722 1,085,925
' Day programs 3,228,898 - 3,228,898 3,882,692

Early intervention 681,659 - 681,659 696,826

Enhanced family care 3,309,717 - 3,309,717 3,204,420

Community options 208,225 - 208,225 335,310
Community residences 10,598,006 . 10,598,006 8,714,212

Transportation 45,234 - 45,234 93,507

Family support 4,098,763 - 4,098,763 3,888,473
Other Dps 22,796 .  - 22,796 91,826
Other programs 1,452,563 - 1,452,563 1,130,021

Supporting activities
General management 2,661,292 50,163 2,711,455 2,180,759
Fundraising 142.685 - 142,685 140,506

Total expenses 27,507,560 50,163 27,557,723 25,444,477

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (5,752) (50,163) (55,915) 15,747

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,079,798 1,301,778 . 7,381.576 7,365,829

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR $  6.074.046 J  1.251.515 £  7.325.661 S  7 381 576

See Notes to Financial Statements
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LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL. INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabilities;

Accounts payable
Accrued salaries, wages, and related expenses
Accrued earned time

Refundable advances

Other accrued expenses

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Payroll Protection Program loan
Proceeds from State of NH - Emergency Healthcare System Relief loan
Increase in due from affiliates

Decrease in due to affiliates

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

2020 2019

$  (55,915) $ 15.747

245,964

(2,105,934)
(24,466)

388,522
164,444

30,434

39,002
234.240

(1.083,709)

(256,108)

(256,108)

2,739,774

50,000

-  (22,718)

2,767,056

1,427,239

4,663,758

247,854

(150,576)
(2,064)

(49,525)
(162,131)

3,435

59,902

20,344

(17,014)

(42,197)

(42,197)

(57,267)
(50,359)

(107.626)

(166,837)

4,830,595

S  6 090.997 S 4 668 758

See Notes to Financial Statements
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LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Service Day Early Enhanced Community

Coordination Programs Intervention Family Care Options

PERSONNEL COSTS

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

PROFESSIONAL FEES AND

CONSULTATIONS

Client treatfhent & therapies
Accounting/auditing

Legal

Subcontract services

Other professional fees

STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Journals and publications

Conference/conventions

Other staff development

OCCUPANCY COSTS

Rent

Mortgage payments

Utilities

Repairs and maintenance

Other occupancy costs

CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES

Office supplies and equipment

under $2,500

Building/household

Client

Medical supplies

ASSISTANCE TO INDIVIDUALS

PRODUCT SALES

EQUIPMENT RENTAL

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION

ADVERTISING

PRINTING

TELEPHONE

POSTAGE

TRANSPORTATION

INSURANCE

MEMBERSHIP DUES

CLIENT PAYMENTS

OTHER

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

669,539 S 1,925,289

196,952 554,044

48,254

43,055

3,214

43,201

841

(841)

30,060

2,805

18

1,201

4,129

16

15,322

(44)

143,338

120

26,539

84,022

8,862

2,366

28,181

5,401

720

1,521

135

17,680

165

388

11,020

123

9,243

12

319,264

9,025

76,054

5,386

$  401,331 $ 221,144

119,562 65,898

29,316 16,104

2,939,500

89,166

75

(725)

24,280

3,397

13,905

392

960

535

13,832

1,105

178

15,353

1,909

200

1,173

1,061

15

29,626

94

1,990

$  135,895

38,788

9,374

2,173

407

21,581

$  1,057,722 $ 3,228,898 $ 681,659 $ 3,309,717 $ 208,225

See Notes to Financial Statements
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LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Community Family Other General

Residences Transportation Support DDS Management

PERSONNEL COSTS

Salaries and wages $ 3,653,793 $ 20,560 $ 1,113,971 $ - $ 1,151,875

Employee benefits 1,028,826 6,290 315,591 - . 331,823

Payrolltaxes 269,044 1,516 82,727 - 85,287

PROFESSIONAL FEES AND

CONSULTATIONS

Clerical contracted staff - ' - - - 749

Client treatment & therapies 146,982 - 1,789,566 - 1,032

Accounting/auditing • - - - - 95,386

Legal - . - - . - 4,086

Subcontract services 4,647,711 - 456,396

Other professional fees - - 9,045 9,388 195,167

STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Journals and publications - - - - 394

Conference/conventions - - 390 - 7,880

Other staff development 141 - - - 33,190

OCCUPANCY COSTS

Rent 185,100 - 100

Mortgage payments 9,165 - . . .

Utilities 100,867 - - - . 49,547

Repairs and maintenance 66,088 - • • 109,348

Other occupancy costs 191,344 - 10,604 - (185,566)

CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES

Office supplies and equipment

under $2,500 12,497 7 25 - 35,343

Building/household 25,208 - - - 2,975

Client 102,385 - 3,827 13,382 6,506

• Medical supplies 5,056 - .4,013 26 2,804

ASSISTANCE TO INDIVIDUALS 714 - 61,987 - 3,667

PRODUCT SALES 40 - - . ' - 17
EQUIPMENT RENTAL - - - - 25,731

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 14,352 - 1,215 - 24,916

DEPRECIATION 30,979 13,806 - - 188,937

ADVERTISING - - 113 - 41,268

PRINTING . . . . 2,592

TELEPHONE 6,635 - - - 59,359

POSTAGE - - - - 17,378

TRANSPORTATION ^ 99,185 3,055 180,454
INSURANCE - - 100 - 165,090

MEMBERSHIP DUES - - 46,745 - 55,883

CLIENT PAYMENTS 234 - 149 - 6,207

OTHER 1,660 ^ 21,745 ^ 192,584

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES $ 10,598,006 $ 45,234 $ 4,098,763 $ 22,796 $ 2,711,455

See Notes to Financial Statements
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LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Total Total

DDS Non-DDS 2020 2019

Fundralsina Funded Funded Totals Totals

PERSONNEL COSTS

Salaries and wages $  88.192 $  9,381,589 $  -918,474 $ 10,300,063 $  10,150,156
Employee benefits 25,373 2,683,147 265,189 2,948,336 2,761,969

Payroll taxes 6,570 691,530 67,516 759,046 755,779

PROFESSIONAL FEES AND

CONSULTATIONS

Client treatment & therapies - 4,920,135 24,759 4,944.894 4,665,356

Accounting/auditing - 95.386 - 95,386 101,500
Legal - 7,300 - 7,300 4,015
Subcontract services - 5,193,393 9,100 5,202,493 3,793,712
Other professional fees 10,370 267,171 - 267,171 297,476
STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Journals and publications 35 964 - 964 451

Conference/conventions 1,504 10,690 1,478 12,168 21,959
Other staff development - 58,304 5,755 64,059 42,087

OCCUPANCY COSTS

Rent - 269,222 - 269,222 283,420
Mortgage payments - 9,165 - 9,165 9,023
Utilities - 159,276 24 159,300 165,944

Repairs and maintenance - 177,802 639 178,441 192,401
Other occupancy costs - 114,908 79,212 194,120 89,076

CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES

Office supplies and equipment

under $2,500 720 61,300 12,182, 73,482 130,594

Building/household - 29,099 33 29,132 22,451
Client 349 144,931 8,920 153,851 149,531
Medical supplies - 12,034 49 12,083 11,614

ASSISTANCE TO INDIVIDUALS - 72,406 10,504 82,910 31,798

PRODUCT SALES - 17,737 - 17,737 24,821

EQUIPMENT RENTAL - 26,096 - 26,096 23,785
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE - 42,044 . 42,044 26.733
DEPRECIATION - 244,742 1,222 245,964 247,854

ADVERTISING 1,490 44,055 4,000 48,055 41,453
PRINTING 4,330 6,922 - 6,922 4,396

TELEPHONE - 75,268 - 75,268 57,582
POSTAGE 1,057 18,447 35 18,482 17,928
TRANSPORTATION - 682,392 40,082 722,474 870,381

INSURANCE - 165,190 - 165,190 110,247
MEMBERSHIP DUES 1,885 113,538 450 113,988 146,132

CLIENT PAYMENTS - 83,137 1,172 84,309 101,838

OTHER 810 225,091 1,768 226,859 91,015

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES $ 142,685 $ 26.105.160 $ 1.452,563 $ 27,557.723 $ 25.444,477

See Notes to Financial Statements
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LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc. (the Council) is a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation organized exclusively for charitable purposes to ensure there is a coordinated and
efficient program of human services dealing effectively with the problems and needs of the
developmentally impaired of Belknap County, lower Grafton County and the surrounding
communities.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc. have been
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Council have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the Council to report information
regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the
primary objectives of the Council. These net assets may be used at the discretion
of the Council's management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by
donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those
restrictions will be met by actions of the Council or by passage of time. Other donor
restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be
maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions.
When restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to
net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities.

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Council had net assets with donor restrictions and net
assets without donor restrictions.

Cash and Cash Egulvalents

For the purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Council considers all demand
deposits, money market funds, and short-term investments with original maturities of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

10
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Other Events

The impact of the novel coronavirus ("COVID-19") and measures to prevent its spread are
affecting the Council's operations. The significance of the impact of these disruptions,
including the extent of their adverse impact on the Council's financial and operational
results, will be dictated by the length of time that such disruptions continue and, in turn, will
depend on the currently unknowable duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of
governmental regulations that might be imposed in response to the pandemic. The Council's
operations could also be impacted should the disruptions from COVID-19 lead to changes in
client behavior. The COVID-19 impact on the capital markets could also impact the
Council's cost of borrowing. There are certain limitations on the Council's- ability to mitigate
the adverse financial impact of these items. COVID-19 also makes it more challenging for
management to estimate future performance of the operations, particularly over the near to
medium term.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a
charge to activities and a credit to a valuation allowance based on historical account write
off patterns by the payor, adjusted as necessary to reflect current conditions. Balances that
are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off
through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable.

The Council has no policy for charging interest on overdue accounts nor are its accounts
receivable pledged as collateral, except as disclosed in Note 4.

It is the policy of the Council to provide services to all eligible residents of central New
Hampshire without regard to ability to pay. As a result of this policy, all charity care write
offs are recorded as reductions in revenue in the period in which services are provided. The
accounts receivable allowance includes the estimated amount of charity care and
contractual allowances included in the accounts receivable balances. The computation of
the contractual allowance is based on historical ratios of fees charged to amounts collected.

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor for future periods or
for specific purposes are reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the
nature of the restrictions. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the
contribution is received, the Council reports the support as net assets without donor
restrictions.

Propertv and Depreciation

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if contributed, at estimated fair value at the
'date of contribution. Material assets with a useful life in excess of one year are capitalized.
Depreciation is provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 5-40 Years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10 Years

11
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Costs for repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred and betterments are
capitalized. Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along with
the related accumulated depreciation, and any gain or loss is recognized.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Council's financial instruments consist of cash, short-term receivables and payables
and customer deposits. The carrying value for all such instruments, considering the terms,
approximates fair value at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are incurred.

Summarized Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total
but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a
presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Council's
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019, from which the summarized information
was derived.

Accrued Earned Time

The Council has accrued a liability for future compensated leave time that its employees have
earned and which is vested with the employee.'

Income Taxes

The Council is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code. The Internal Revenue Service has determined the Council to be other than a private
foundation.

Management has evaluated the Council's tax positions and concluded that the Council has
maintained its tax-exempt status and has taken no uncertain tax positions that would require
adjustment to the financial statements. With few exceptions, the Council is no longer subject to
income tax examinations by the United States Federal or State tax authorities prior to 2017.

Advertising

The Council expenses advertising costs as incurred.

12
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Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the program services and
supporting activities benefited. Such allocations have been determined by management on an
equitable basis.

The expenses that are allocated include the following:

Expense Method of allocation

Salaries and benefits Time and effort

Occupancy Square footage/revenues

Depreciation Direct assignment

All other expenses Direct assignment

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncement

During the year, the Council adopted the provisions of FASB ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the
Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made
(Topic 958). This accounting standard is meant to help not-for-profit entities evaluate whether
transactions should be accounted for as contributions or as exchange transactions and, if the
transaction is identified as a contribution, whether it is conditional or unconditional. ASU 2018-
08 clarifies how an organization determines whether a resource provider is receiving
commensurate value in return for a grant. If no commensurate value is received by the grant
maker, the transfer is a contribution. ASU 2018-08 stresses that the value received by the
general public as a result of the grant is not considered to be commensurate value received by
the provider of the grant. Results for reporting the years ending June 30, 2020 and 2019 are
presented under FASB ASU 2018-08. The comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under the accounting standards in effect in those reporting periods.
There was no material impact to the financial statements as a result of adoption. Accordingly,
no adjustment to opening net assets was recorded.

■/
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2. LIQUIDITY AND AVALIBILITY

The following represents the Council's financial assets as of June 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,090,997 $ 4,663,758
Accounts receivable:

Medicaid 2,560,926 612,598
Other, net 443,943 286,337
Deposits 37.779 37.779

Total financial assets $ 9.133.645 S 5.600.472

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:

Deposits $ 37.779 $ 37.779

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months S 9.095.866 $ 5.562.693

The Council's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 90 days of operating
expenses (approximately $6.73 million). As part of its liquidity plan, excess cash is invested in
short-term investments, including money market accounts.

3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As of June 30. 2020 and 2019, property and equipment consisted of the following:

2020 2019

Buildings and improvements $  4.141,347 $  3,936,642
Leasehold improvements 393,215 393,215

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 837,434 781,138

Vehicles 173,352 173,352
Land 152,200 152,200
Construction in progress - 4.893

Total 5,697,548 5.441,440
Less accumulated depreciation 2.243.130 1.997.166

Property and equipment, net $  3.454.418 $  3.444.274

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 amounted to $245,964 and
$247,854, respectively.
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4. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Council maintains a revolving line of credit with a bank. The revolving line of credit
provides for maximum borrowings up to $3,000,000 and is renewable annually. Effective
January 27, 2020 the Council renewed the revolving line of credit through December 31, 2020,
and is collateralized by all of the business assets of the Council and guaranteed by related
nonprofit organizations (see Note 11). At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the interest was stated at
the bank's prime rate of 3.25% and 5.50%, respectively. There was no amount outstanding on
this line of credit at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

5. PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM LOAN

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Council applied for and was awarded a Payroll
Protection Program loan through the Small Business Administration. Loan forgiveness is
possible if certain criteria are met. Any amounts not forgiven are to be repaid over a two-year
period, with payments deferred for the first six months. Interest would be stated at 1%. As of
the date of the audit report, the amount of the loan that will be eligible for forgiveness is
unknovyn. The loan amounted to $2,739,774, at June 30, 2020, and is recorded as a liability on
the accompanying statement of financial position.

6. STATE OF NH - EMERGENCY HEALTHCARE SYSTEM RELIEF LOAN

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Council applied for and was awarded a loan through
the State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services' COVID-19
Emergency Healthcare System Relief Fund. The loan will mature 180 days after the expiration
of the State of Emergency declared by the governor of NH. At the discretion of the lender, the
loan may be forgiven and converted to a grant contingent upon certain criteria being met. As of
the date of the audit report, the State of New Hampshire remained under the State of
Emergency declaration. The loan amounted to $50,000 at June 30, 2020, and is recorded as a
liability on the accompanying statement of financial position.

7. NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions were made up of a building donated to the Council with
restricted use for 30 years. The amount released from restriction each year is the current year
deprecation on the building. The amount of net assets with donor restrictions were $1,251,615
and $1,301,778 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

8. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Council maintains a retirement plan for all eligible employees. During the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Council made matching contributions of 100% of a participant's
salary reduction that was not in" excess of 2% of the participant's compensation. All
employees who work one thousand hours per year are eligible to participate after one year of
employment. The Council's contribution to the retirement plan for the years ended June 30,
2020 and 2019 was $78,621 and $60,666, respectively.
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9. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, approximately 81% and 84%, respectively, of
the total revenue was derived from Medicaid. The future existence of the Council is dependent
upon continued support from Medicaid.

In order for the Council to receive Medicaid funding, they must be formally approved by the
State of New Hampshire. Division of Health and Human Services (DHHS) as the provider of
services for developmentally disabled individuals for that region. In June 2016, the Council was
re-designated for the period September 2015 through September 2020.

Medicaid receivables comprise approximately 85% and 68% of the total accounts receivable
balances at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

10. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Council has entered into various operating lease agreements to rent certain facilities and
office equipment for their community residences and other programs. The terms of these
leases range from one to ten years. The Council also leases various apartments on behalf of
clients on a month-to-month basis. Rent expense under these agreements aggregated
$295,318 and $307,205 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows;

Year Ending
June 30 Amount

2021 $  160,173
2022 89,502

2023 77,640
2024 77,640

2025 17.995

Total $  422.910

Refer to Note 11 for information regarding a lease agreement with a related party.
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11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc. is related to the following nonprofit
corporations as a result of common board membership:

Related Party

Genera Corporation

Greater Laconia Transit Agency

Lakes Region Community Services Foundation

Function

Manages and leases property

Provides transportation
services

Solicit, receive, and administer
fundraising efforts for the benefit of
the Council and others

Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc. has contracts and transactions with the above
related parties during its normal course of operations. The significant related party
transactions are as follows:

Received From:

Genera Corporation $

Genera Corporation, $

Lakes Region Community
Services Foundation $

Paid To:

Genera Corporation $

Lakes Region Community
Services Foundation $

2020

14,400 $

14,988 $

63,000 $

2020

2019 Purpose

14,400 Management, Accounting
and Financial Services

14,988 Insurance Reimbursement

20,000 Program Support

2019

109,800 $ 109,800 Rental of Homes

15,000 $ 60 Foundation Contributions

Due (To)/From:

Genera Corporation

Greater Laconia Transit

Agency

Lakes Region Community
Services Foundation

2020

$  33,771 $

2019

61,214

(15.0001

$  79.985 $

4.272

61,214

(8.2191

57.267
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There are no specified terms of payment and no interest stated on the related party due (to)
from accounts.

Demand Note Payable

The Council's demand note payable is guaranteed by Genera Corporation (see Note 4).

Rent

The Council has a perpetual lease agreement with Genera Corporation which calls for annual
rent payments. The future minimum lease payments under the lease are $109,800, annually.

I

Insurance Reimbursement

Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc. carries a joint liability policy with the related
parties above. Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc. pays for the coverage in full
and then is reimbursed by the affiliates based on contracts between the agencies.

Prepaid Expenses Related to Affiliated Organization

The Council has recorded prepaid expenses related to advances paid to Greater Laconia
Transit Agency for the purchase of vehicles to be used solely for the transportation services for
the Council's consumers. There were no advances for the years ended June 30, 2020 and
2019.

The Council had expensed these advances over the useful lives of the vehicles (3-7 years).
Accordingly, Greater Laconia Transit Agency had recorded the advances as deferred revenue
and recognized the income consistently over the useful lives of the vehicles. The total amount
of the advances expensed by the Council and included as revenue by Greater Laconia Transit
Agency was $6,312 for the years ended June 30, 2019. No amounts were included in revenue
or expense during the year ended June 30, 2020.

12. CONTINGENCIES - GRANT COMPLIANCE

The Council receives funds under various state grants and from Federal sources. Under the
terms of these agreements, the Council is required to use the funds within a certain period and
for purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found not to
have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Council may be required to
repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not
been determined or assessed by government audits as of June 30, 2020.

13. CLIENT FUNDS

The Council administers funds for certain consumers. No asset or liability has been recorded
for this amount. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, client funds held by the Council aggregated
$452,318 and $260,453, respectively.
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14. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Council maintains cash balances that, at times may exceed federally insured limits. The
balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation {FDIC) up to $250,000 at
June 30, 2020 and 2019. In addition to FDIC coverage, certain deposits of the Council are
insured or collateralized through other means. The Council has not experienced any losses in
such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk \with these accounts. At
June 30. 2020 and 2019, cash balances in excess of FDIC coverage aggregated $862,551
and $852,568, respectively.

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION RISK

The Council maintains a repurchase account agreement with a bank. A portion of the
Council's overnight deposit bank balances are divided into amounts under the FDIC limit of
$250,000 and swept into various insured bank accounts. This agreement provides flexibility to
the Council by allowing them to maintain large cash balances in excess of the standard FDIC
limit individually, but when spread across multiple banks, providing insurance for the full
amount of the repurchase account.

16. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were reclassified to
enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, including the estimates
inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Non recognized subsequent
events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the statement
of financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent
events through October 9. 2020. the date the June 30, 2020 financial statements were
available for issuance.
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LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Program fees

Medicaid

Client resources

Other third party payers

Public support

Private foundations

Production/service income

Investment

State of New Hampshire - DDS

Management fees

Other

Service

Coordination

$ 5,908

929,103

1,463

465

1,996

Day

Programs

$  36,177

3,337,199

5,994

20,000

115,752

97,910

Early

Intervention

S 13,189

595,451

3,047

163,010

195

Enhanced

Family Care

$  811,044

3,341,361

25,899

Community

Options

216,917

4,965

162,085 8,215

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL REVENUES $ 938,935 $ 3,613,032 $ 774,892 $ 4,340,389 $ 230,097
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LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Community Family Other General

Residences Support Transportation DPS Management

Program fees. $ 483,470 $ 829 $ - $ 39,903 $ 79,757

Medlcaid 9,283,305 4,549,912

Client resources 38,070 18,519

Other third party payers . . . . .

Public support . . . . (4,728)
Private foundations . . . . 20.000

Production/service income . . . . .

Investment . . . . 24,647

State of New Hampshire - DOS 178,887 108,268 - - 917,936

Management fees . . . . 14,400

Other 262,544 31,064 - - 182,499

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL REVENUES $ 10,246,276 $ 4,708,592 $ - $ 39,903 $ 1.234,511
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LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Total Total

DDS Non-DDS 2020 2019

Fundraisina 'Funded Funded Totals Totals

Program fees $ $ 1,470,277 $  61,183 $ 1,531,460 $  1,478,072

Medicaid - 22,253,248 156,390 22,409,638 21,326,918

Client resources ' - 93,447 - ,  93,447 97,250

Other third party payers - 1,463 - 1,463 5,281

Public support 6,061 21,333 512,352 533,685 490,077

Private foundations - 20,000 172,163 192,163 78,500

Production/service income - 119,264 320 119,584 169,225

Investment - 24,647 . 24,647 24,491

State of New Hampshire - DOS - 1,368,101 - 1,368,101 1,322,817

Management fees . 14,400 - 14,400 14,616

Other 1,067 747,575 465,645 1,213.220 452,977

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL REVENUES $  7.128 L 2fi 133 755 $  1.368.053 2.27.501.808 S 25.460.224
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LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL. INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/

PROGRAM TITLE

FEDERAL

CFDA

NUMBER

PASS

THROUGH

GRANTOR

NUMBER

U.S. DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Passed through State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services,
Division of Children, Youth and Families

Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Services Program 93.645 102-5000734-42106802
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 102-5000734-42107306

TANF CLUSTER

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558

Maternal & Child Health Services Block Grant for States 93.994

Social Services Block Grant 93.667

Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services,
Social Services Block Grant 93.667

Child Abuse and Neglect Discretionary Activities 93.670

AGING CLUSTER

Special Programs for Aging, Title III, B 93.044

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services,
Division of Long Term Supports and Services

Special Education - Grants for Infants and Families 84.181A

Total U.S. Department of Education

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Passed through State of New Hampshire
Governor's Office of Emergency Relief and Recovery
COVID-19 Long Term Care Stabilization Program
Coronavirus Relief Fund

J

Total U.S. Department of the Treasury

Total expenditures of federal awards

21.019

102-5000734-45030353

102-5000734-45030205

102-5000734-90004009

102-5000734-42106603

05-95-48-481010-9255

102-5000731-90070470

05-95-48-481010-7872

05-95-93-930010-7852

N/A

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

4,000

18,398

134,441
32.444

166,885

4,911

68,987

160,175

229,162

42,085

20,794

$  486,235

$  102,760

$  102,760.

$  731,657

$  731,657

.$ 1,320,652

23



DocuSign Envelope ID: 60E32D1F-4A34-45AE-AFAO-B389DC12D335

LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL. INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Lakes Region Community Services Council.
Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2020.
The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of Lakes Region Community Services Council,
Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, change in
net assets, or cash flows of Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis d
accounting. Such expenditures are repognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying
numbers are presented where available. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of
business to amount reported as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc. has elected not to use the ten
percent de minimis indirect.cost rate allowed under Uniform Guidance. ^
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LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL INC.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc.
Laconia, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and
2019, and the related statements of cash flows, and the related notes to the financial
statements for the years then ended, and the related statements of activities and functional
expenses for the year ended June 30, 2020, and have Issued our report thereon dated
October 9, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Lakes Region
Community Services Council, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness" of Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc.'s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Lakes Region
Community Services Council, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Lakes Region Community Services
Council, Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit,' and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
organization's infernal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
October 9. 2020
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LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL. INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc.
Laconia, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc.'s compliance with the types
of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc.'s major
federal programs for the.year ended June 30, 2020. Lakes Region Community Services
Council, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Lakes Region Community
Services Council, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc.'s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Lakes
Region Community Services Council, Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc. complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc. is responsible for establishing
and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc.'s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc.'s Internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in'internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
October 9, 2020
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LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial
statements of Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc. were prepared in
accordance with GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance w/fh Government Auditing Standards. No
material weaknesses are reported.

}

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Lakes
Region Community Services Council! Inc., which would be required to be reported
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the
audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the. Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform
Guidance. No material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Lakes '
Region Community Services Council, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all
major federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2
CFR Section 200.516(a).

7. The program tested as major programs was: U.S. Department of the Treasury,
Coronavirus Relief Fund, CFDA 21.019.

8. The threshold for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc. was determined to not be a low-
risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS-MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT

None
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Lakes Region Community Services

Board of Directors 2020 - 2021

Board List

Gary Lemay, President
NH Electrical Cooperative

Margaret Selig, Vice President
Retired

Rosa Michaud, Secretary
Bank of New Hampshire

Jeanin Ones, Treasurer

Bank of New Hampshire

R. Stuart Wallace, Past President

NH Technical Institute

Carrie Chase, Member-at-Large
United Postal Service

Lynn Hilbrunner, Membcr-at-Large
NH Veterans Home

DIRECTORS

Randy Perkins
Eversource

Richard Crocker

Retired

Garrett Lavallec

Spaulding Youth Center

Catherine Walker

LR General Hospital

Thomas Costigan Jr.
Speare Memorial Hospital

Kurt Christensen

Owl's Nest Resort & Golf Club
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Kirk Beattie

Laconia Fire Department

Heather Dockham

Bank of New Hampshire

Pamela Hannett

Traction on Demand

Matthew Canfield, Director Emeritus
Laconia Police Department
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HeBecca "Bryant

EDUCATION

New IZiigland College
May 2018 Master of Business Administration & Non Profit Leadership Graduate Certificate

Keenc State College
May 1995 Bachelor of Science, Business Management, Accounting Concentration

* Management Award
♦ NH Small Business Institute Project of the Year

• Business Manager, Equinox, Kecne State Student Newspaper

EXPERIENCE

Lakes Region Conmumiry Sendees ♦ Laconia, New Hampshire
President & CEO October 2016 — Current

Chief Executive Officer of Community Based Not-For-Profit Corporation. Responsible for overall administration of
a S30 million with 400 employees, 100 private contractors, and ser\'ing thousands of individuals and families in the,
greater Lakes Region. Responsible for the development and oversight of a community- based social ser\'ices system
including ser\'ices to infants, children, families and elders through the lifespan. Provide total agency leadership, fiscal
management, risk management, program stewardship. Report to and work closely with the Board of Directors.

Director of Finance April 2007 — October 2016

Chief Financial Officer. Oversaw financial and personnel administration for private non-profit human scrx'ices
agency with an annual budget of $30 million and 400 employees. Prepared and monitored annual budgets.
Negotiated funding requests with the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Ser\'ices
(NHDHHS). Responsible for all funding compliance for NHDHHS and Center for Medicare and Medicaid
Ser\'ices (CMS.) Prepared and managed contracts with funding sources and vendors. Oversaw Agency Risk
Management program. Administered the agency's compensation and benefits plans. Ensured compliance with
applicable state and federal labor regulations. Oversaw the installation and support of agency Information
Tcchnolog^^ Major accomplishments include work on the S2.5mil Capital Campaign, compete IT Infrastructure
overhaul, significant human capital and programmatic bridge building between Finance and
Operations. Reported to and work closely with the Board of Directors and Executive Director.

Wilcom ̂  Laconia, New Hampshire
Controller 2000-April 2007

Controller for Telecommunications Manufacturer celebrating 40 years in business in 2007. Direct report to the
Vice President/Chief Financial Officer and President, Chief Operating Officer in New York. Responsible for
all functions and employees in; Accounting, Sales, MIS, Customer Ser\'ice, Human Resources and Facilities. As
Acting General Manager responsible for NH Operations in the absence of the President and Vice President.
During tenure with this company successes included; writing and negotiating GSA proposal to obtain GSA
Schedule Award, creaung and maintaining multiple government registrations including CCR, JCP, ORCA and
AES Direct, maintaining 100% in-house collections for receivables, and super\'ision of office renovation
project. As part of accounting function maintained t\\'0 day month end close with a manual closing system. In
fulfilling MIS super\'isor)' role, led MIS through major web site overhaul with outside vendor, MRP system
upgrade, and phone system upgrade. Led Sales Department through transition from reliance on outside sales
and manufactvircr's reps to 100% mside sales through restructuring, hiring and daily oversight of Sales
Department.

J
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ir nl

Frcudcnberg-NOK General Partnership ♦ Bristol, New Hampshire
Hyperion Adniinistrator]\A)' 2000-August 2000

Assistant Hyperion Administrator]^r\u^vy 1999-July 2000

Assistant Treasury Manager 1997-Januar\' 1999

As Hyperion Administrator, responsible for compiling monthly data feeds from 16 locations throughout the
United States, Mexico and Brazil and producing consolidated financial statements. Assisted the Hyperion
Administrator, maintained ail aspects of financial database, wrote logic for the financial statements,
administered system securit)', troubleshot for end users of database, and wrote reports for financial analysts.
Prepared a multitude of comprehensive financial reports for the parent
company in Germany. Communicated daily with the controllers and financial analysts in the United States and
Europe to ensure timely collection and distribution of financial data. As Assistant Treasury Manager
managed day-to-day activities of the Treasur)' Department including cash management, debt management, risk
management (insurance and foreign currency hedging,) worker's compensation, corporate centralized accounts
payable, intra-company accounts payable and receivable, as well as reconciliations of all general ledger accounts
relating to treasur)'. Fulfilled all duties of both the Treasur)' Manager and Assistant Treasur)' Manager for nine
months in the absence of the Treasur)' Manager.

SKILLS, CERTIFICATIONS
♦Justice of the Peace, State of New Hampshire

♦ Notary Public, State of New l-lampshire
♦ [.^adcrship Lakes Region Class of 2008

♦ Proficiency in all Microsoft Office y\pplications
• Significant experience and proficiency with accounting systems including, Dynamics, Solomon, QAD, Hyperion

* Paylocit)', ADP and Harper's Payroll Systems
♦ Business Process Kaizen

• l.,EAN

BOARD SERVICE
♦ Treasurer, Executive Committee, Communit)' Ser\'ices Network Inc, (CSNl) 2017 - Current

♦ Board Member, Sigma One Manufacturer's Workers' Compensation Trust 2010 — Current
♦ Secretary, Executive Committee, Community l-lealth Ser\'ices Network (CHSN) 2016 — Current

♦ Board Member, Greater Laconia Transit y\gency (GLTA) 2016 - Current
♦ Board Member, Genera Corporation, 2016 - Current

♦ Corporator, Franklin Savings Bank

COMMUNITY SERVICE
♦ Middle l.^vel Steering Committee, Moultonborough School District 2017 - Current

♦ Superintendent Search Committee, Moultonborough School District, 2016 - 2017
♦ Children's Ministr)' N'oliuiteer, Grace Capital Church 2015 - 2017

■  ♦ Committee Chair, Moultonborough Cub Scout Pack 369 2013 - 2015
♦ Den leader, Cub Scout Pack 369 2005 - 2015

♦ Advancements Chair, Cub Scout Pack 369 2005 — 2009
♦ Sunday School Teacher - Middle Class & Teens, Moultonborough United Methodist Church 2007 — 2015

♦ Nurser)' Coordinator, Moultonborough United Methodist Church 2005 - 2007
* Youth Basketball Coach 2013 - 2014

♦ Vacation Bible School, Moultonborough United Methodist Church 2005 - 2014
♦ Chair, Recreation Advisor)' Board, Town of Moultonborough 2008 — 2010

--References Available Upon Request—
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Erin Pettengill, M.S.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Family Resource Center Director- December 1,2015-present Lakes Region Community Services
Laconia, NH

As the director of the Family Resource Center 1 am responsible for the comprehensive family support
services for 1200 families in Central NH. 1 oversee the management of programs including Early

Supports and Services, the Autism Center, Step Ahead. I am responsible for staff of 20, including
physical therapists, family support aides and program managers. A significant part of my job is to
research and apply for grants to support families in catchment area. Grants awarded include funding from
the Linden Foundation, Pardoe Foundation and the Van Otterloo Grant. I also represent LRCS on

community and statewide initiatives, ensuring collaboration with area agencies and organizations.

Transition Coordinator- September 2010- November 2015 Lakes Region Community Services
Plymouth,NH
Part of the transition coordinators role is to work with families, individual, school systems and other
various agencies to advocate and develop a plan for when an individual enters adult services. Part of the
planning process includes facilitating the guardianship process, conducting state interviews, developing a
budget based on the needs and support of the individual and coordinating services based on the money
allocated. This job requires proficiency in social security benefits, Medicaid, state regulations and
community connections. In conjunction with this role I became a certified START coordinator for the
state of New Hampshire, with the focus on supporting dual diagnosed individuals.

In Home Counselor-July 2007 — July 2010
Family Preservation Community Services, Asheville, NC
Nonprofit Charitable Organizations
As an In Home Counselor for foster care my job was to supervise the foster parents. Additionally, I
counseled the foster children in the home and provided crisis stabilization when needed. My other
responsibilities included but were not limited to arranging team meetings, being a liaison between the
foster family and other support members (Department of Social Services, community support, school
districts, etc.). I was also responsible for providing documentation of visits and monitoring their books for
certifieations purposes. My primary duty was to make sure that the foster home ran smoothly and to
develop solutions for any problems that arose.

EDUCATION:

Bachelor's Degree, 8/ 2000 - 12/2004 Keene State College | Keene, NH
Master's Degree in Counseling, 9/2009-3/2012 Capella University | Minneapolis, MN

SKILLS:

Certified Work Incentives Benefits Specialist

Certified START Coordinator

Qualified Mental Health Professional

REFERENCES

References available upon request
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Shelley Kelleher

Skills Solomon Dynamics SL Accounting, Paylocity, Harpers, QuickBooks, Access and Excel including VBA,
PowerPoint, Word, SAP (

Lakes Region Community Services Laconia, NH

2017-Present Vice President & Chief Financial Officer-Oversee financial administration and risk management of a private
non-profit human services agency with a budget of$27M and 500 employees.

2012-2016 Controller-Responsible for the day-to-day supervision of staff performing the accounting and payroll functions
for a private non-profit human services agency with a budget of $26M.

- Ensure 500 employees are paid accurately
-Manage State and Federal contract funding ensuring compliance.
-Review internal control procedures writing new and updating controls.
-Liaison with external auditors for annual audit, A-133 audit, and 403B audit.

-Prepare monthly financial statements for all businesses with over 300 cost centers.
-403B Committee member.

2007-2011 Senior Staff Accountant-Maintain the integrity, security, and reliability of the financial systems through accurate
and efficient management of the financial records.

-Prepare, review, and distribute monthly operating statements.
-Maintain chart of accounts.

-Perform monthly balance sheet reconciliations.
-Organize data collection and prepare audit schedules for external audit.
-Assist in preparation of the annual budget.

Arrow Enterprise Storage Solutions/AECS Englewood, CO

2001-2006 Finance Manager-Manage controls and accuracy of financial data for S300M division.

-Budget and forecast P&L and ROWC.
-Participate in quarterly business reviews, sales and budget reviews to Senior Management.
-Compile monthly reports for 4 divisions (revenue of $1 billion) to Senior Management on financial statistics,
product line and customer sales, headcount, productivity, and trend analysis.
-Analyze and manage data through Access database and Visual Basic.
-Provide division analysis for the BOD updates and quarterly analyst earnings calls for Arrow Electronics.

MOCA, Inc. An Arrow Company Marlborough, MA

2000-2001 Senior Manager, Financial Planning and Analysis-Manage the planning and analysis for MOCA a division of
Merisel sold to Arrow Electronics.

-Develop corporate annual budget and monthly forecasts, design department profit and loss analysis, examine
monthly expenses, and prepare A/R reserve reports.
-Audit incentive bonus statistics.

-Administer an accounts receivable database including G/L reconciliation, automation of the distribution and the
data archive function, and design new reports using Visual Basic programming.
-Supervise financial analyst in CA office.

1996-2000 Merisel, Incorporated Marlborough, MA

NAM Reporting and Financial Analysis Manager-Manage subsidiary reporting and analysis.
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-Design and analyze NAM AR Reports for CFO and VP of Financial Services.
-Forecast and analyze actual performance of Balance Sheet Reserves for US and Canadian subsidiary. Present
and discuss reserve analysis with the CFO at monthly reserve meeting.
- Manage bad debt process starting at system write-off including collection agency management, PFC process, and
database reporting to assist the tracking of collections, bankruptcies, and bad debt trends.
-Prepare and analyze $12 million US and C$2 million Canadian budgets for 14 cost centers including monthly
DSO and bad debt provision forecast.
-Analyze customer credit worthiness and make credit line recommendations for accounts over $ 1 million.
-Coordinate facility move to a new location.
-Developed process to reduce Dun & Bradstreet e.xpenses by $ 130,000 annually resulting in a 70% cost reduction.
-Supervise reporting analyst and admin stafT.

1987 to 1996 State Street Bank & Trust Company Quincy, MA

Client Service Manager-Administer the accounting for several large corporate Domestic and International
pension and 40ik clients with $4 to $6 billion in assets.

-Manage a staff of 10.
-Responsible for establishing and maintaining client relationships.
-Reengineer staff workflow which doubled throughput and decreased reporting time by 30%.

Auditor-Coordinate the timely completion and accuracy of over 90 monthly financial statements, maintain audit
copies with all supporting documentation,.implement new procedures, and train employees.

-Audit a daily pricing fund, and maintain control logs for corporate actions and income collection.

Education Master of Studies in Law December 2019
Wake Forest University Law School Business Law and Compliance Certificate
Winston Salem, NC

Master of Business Administration May 1993 "
Bentley University, Waltham, MA Graduate School of Business
Concentration: Finance

B A in Economics and Political Science July 1987
University of Massachusetts, Boston, MA School of Arts and Sciences

Volunteer Got Lunch! Laconia 2018 and 2019
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Lakes Region Community Services Council

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Rebecca Bryant President & CEO 150.000 0 0

Shelley Kelleher Vice President & CFO 110,500 0 0

Erin Pettengill VP of Family Resource
Center

72,794 40% 29,125.20
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STATE OF NEW. HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/y/S/OJV OF Pl/BL/C HEAL TH SER VICES

I ̂  A W HAZEN DRIVE. CONCORD. NH 03301
603.27M501 140(W5W345 Eit 4501

Fii: 603-271-4S27 TDD Accni: l*800>735-2964
UuM-Mofri) www.dbhi.nb.g9v

DIrtctor

July 22. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
enter Into Sole Source amendments to existing contracts for the provision of Community
Collaboration services by providing parental assistance programming to the Winnlpesauke and
Manchester communHles to reduce child maltreatment and the risk of children entering foster
care, by increasing the total price limitation by $328,266 from $1,600,000 to $1,928,266 with no
change to the contract completion date of June 30. 2021 effective upon Governor and Council
approval. The original contracts were approved by Govemor artd Council on July 31. 2019 (Item
#18). 39% Federal Funds. 61% General Funds.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state riscal years through the Budget Office. If needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Increase in funding exceeds ten percent (10%)
of the original contract price limitation. As previously stated, the original contract was approved
by Govemor and Council on July 31, 2019 (Item #18).

The purpose of this request is to increase funds to design evidence-based programs and
identify best practices that will prevent out-of-home placements of children and reduce the number
of child protection cases. The two Community Collaboration contracts are currently bringing
various agencies and representatives together to create an upstream approach to prevention of
child maltreatment services. These contracts are focused on providing services to families and
creating system level changes to a more coordinated service delivery for families. Providers are
currenliy implementing best practices and will begin enrolment within the roxt f^ weeks.
Providers have designed a family navigation entry point at their agencies that will provide Intake.
8creenlr>g. crisis support, advocacy, warm handoffs, and cross system case management to
coordinate services. During the time of the initial contract procurement, the available general
funds were not present due to the continuing resolution. With the addition of the Parental
Assistance Program funds In general funds. New Hampshire wants to strengthen the capacity in
these two Community Collaboration sites through these contracts. The contracts support
development of collaborative educational programs and professional partnerships within the
targeted communities. These programs and partnerships include designing prevention programs.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

parent education, and programs that offer alternatives to out of home placement for children.
Through these contracts, the Department vrill expand access to community-based services for
high-risk families, and provide prevention programming focused on strengthening and preserving
families.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Section 2, Subsection 2.1 of the original contracts, the parties
have the option to extend the agreements for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available fur>ding, agreement of the parties and Governor and
Council approval. The Department Is not exercising its option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, New Hampshire
children and their families may not receive prevention activities within the targeted communities
identified as needing the greatest prevention supports and services.

Area served; Manchester and Winnipesauke Public Health Region.

Source of Funds; 39% Federal Funds, CFDA #93.670, FAIN #90CA1658 US DHHS,
Administration on Children, Youth, and Families (ACYF), Children's Bureau. Community
Collaboration to Strengthen and Preserve Families In NH; and 61% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program:

submitted.

^ij Lori A. Shibinette
^^Commissioner

The Dtportmenl of Health and Human Servieet'ifaeion U to Join tommuniliet andfomiliu
in providing opportuniUee for ciUtene to Ofhieve health and independence.



FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

^  COMMUNFTY COLLABORATION

05-95-042-421010.2958 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: HUMAN
SERVICES DIV. CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD-FAMILY SERVICES

1. Amoskcag Health, Vendor #157274-8001

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account

Class

Title

Job

Number Federal General

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2020 645-504004

General

Funds for

Other

42105745 $400,000.00 $400,000.00 $0.00 $400,000.00

2021 645-504004

General

Funds for

Other

42105745 $200,000.00 $200,000.00 $100,000.00 $300,000.00

Subtotal $600,000.00 $100,000.00 $700,000.00

!. Lakes Region Community Services, Vendor #177251-8002

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account

Class

Title

Job

Number Federal General

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2020 645-504004

General

Funds for

Other

42105745 $400,000.00 $400,000.00 $0.00 $400,000.00

2021 645-504004

General

Funds for

Other

42105745 $200,000.00 $200,000.00 $100,000.00
I

$300,000.00

Subtotal $600,000.00 $100,000.00 $700,000.00

Total 2958 AU: $1,200,000.00 $200,000.00 $1,400,000.00



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment PI to the Community CoDaborstions to Strengthen and Preserve Families Contract

This 1st AmendmenI to the Community CollaboraUons to Strengthen end Preserve Families contrecl
(herelnaftef referred to at 'Amendment PI *) b by and between the State of New Hampshire, DepartmerU
of Health end Human Services {hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Lakes Region
Community Services, (hereinafler referred to as "the ContiactoO. e nonprofit corporation with a place of
business et 719 North Main Street Leconia. NH 03246.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract^ approved by the CSoverrwr and Executive Courtcfl
on July 31,2019, (Item #18), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions spectfled in the Contract artd In consideration of certain sums spectfled; end

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18. (he Contract may be emended
upon written esreement of the partlea and approval from the (Governor ertd Executive Council: and
WHEREAS, the parties egree to Increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these
services; and

NOW THEREFORE. In consldefetkjn of the foregoing and the mutual covorwnts end cofMliUons contained
in the Contract end set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to emend as foBows:

1. ForTnP-37,Ger*eralProvl8lorw, Block 1.8. Prtco Limitation, to read:

i8351,92S.

2. Exhibit B, Methods and Condittons Precedent to Payment, Section 4. Subsection 4.1. to read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basb for actual expenditurea Incurred In the
fuiTBIment of thb AgreemenL and shel] be in accordance with the approved line Item, es specified
in Exhtblta 8-1, Budget through Exhibit B-3 Amendment #1. Budget. '

3. Modify Exhibit B-3, Budget, by replacing It In Its entirety with Exhibit B-3 Amendment #1, Budget
which is attached hereto and tncorporatad by reference herein.

Lakes Region Commurtty S«y<c«s Amendment #1 CcrtractorWl
Fd:p-201S-0PHS-23'COMMU-01-A01 Page 1 ol 3 Qato^Jllm^D



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

(N WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date v^tten below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Name;
TiUe:

Lakes Region Community Services

"Ju-lvi m. Aoao
Date ' Name:

Tltte:

RAeceaLRiyMtt
l^^eddent&CBO

T.RCS

l^kes Region Convnunily Swlces Aracndmert 01

RFP«20ie>OPH$-2>COMM\K)1-AOl Page 2 of 3
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Jeffrey A.
Coaalssioacr

LU» M. MerrU .
Oirwier

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AW HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SER VICES

29HAZCN DRIVE, CONCORD. NM 03301

603-37MS0I I•800-852-3345 CiL 4501
rax:603>27l.4827 TOD Acccu: 1-800-735-2964

' www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 4. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
enter into retroactive agreements with the two (2) vendors listed below, for .the provision of Community
Collaboration services, by providing a service array of t>est practice parental assistance programming to
the Winnipesauke and Manchester communities to reduce child maltreatment and the risk of children
entering foster care, in an amount not to exceed $1 ,'600.000, effective retroactive to March 5. 2019, upon
Governor and the Executive Council approval through June 30. 2021. 25% Federal Funds, 75% General
Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor Number Location
Contract

Amount

Manchester Community Health
Center

#157274-B001
145 Hollis Street,

Manchester, NH 03101
$800,000

Lakes Region Community Senrices #233352-R001
719 North Main-Street,
Laconia, NH 03246

$800,000

Total: ^ $1,600,000

Funds are anticipated to be availat>le in State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon the availability
and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts
within the price limitation, class lines and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-042-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD-FAMILY SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 . 645-504004 General Funds for Other 42105745 $800,000

2021 645-504004 General Funds for Other 42105745 $400,000

Sub Total: 200,000



H« Excellency. Governor Chnetopher T. Surwnu.
And ihe Honorable Cound)
Page 2 of 4

05-95^90-902010-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, COMMUNITY COLLABORATION

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts (or Program
Services

90070470 $200,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

90070470 $200,000

Sub Tola/: S^OO.OOO

Total: $1,600,000

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive due to a programmatic determination to align federal and state
resources, the timeline necessary to do this, and delays in the contracting process due to Ihe volume of
contracts pending in the DHHS pipeline. The Department was awarded Federal Funds through the
Community Collatjorations to Strengthen and Preserve Families grant in October 2018. This provided
an important opportunity to align and leverage both these federal resources along with state resources
provided through SB 592 for Parental Assistance Programs. The opportunity to simultaneously target
efforts towards reducing child maltreatment and the number of children at risk of foster care in two needy
communities was deemed priority: tiowever. this delayed the procurement process timeline until Federal
Funds were accepted to expend by Ihe Fiscal Committee in late January 2019. Once this occurred, the
procurement process moved forward as rapidly as possible by DHHS staff; however, due to other
contracts pending with the DHHS contracts unit delays occurred in finalizing proposal selections and
notifying vendors.

Once notified of their award, due the condensed timeline, vendors needed to initiate preparatory
activities immediately. These activities included; researching and selecting an array of evidence-based
services and associated materials, assessing staff training needs, planning and scheduling trainings and
facilitating slakeholder meetings to promote improved coordination of services and referrals.

The purpose of this request is to design evidence-based programs and identify best practices that
will prevent out-of-home placements of children ar>d reduce the number of child protection cases. The
contracts support development of collaborative educational programs and professional partnerships
within Ihe targeted communities. These programs and partnerships include designing prevention
programs, court diversion programs, and programs that offer alternative to out of home placement for
children.

New Hampshire currently ranks 5th in the nation In the overall rate of overdose of prescription
and injection drugs. In Slate Fiscal Year 2017, New Hampshire spent $36 niillion on foster care to serve
children coming into the system. Through these contracts, the Department will expand access to
community-based sen/ices for high-risk families, and provide prevention programming focused on
strengthening and preserving families. ^

Manchester Community Health Center and Lakes Region Community Services vyere selected for
this project through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted on the Department
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of Health and Human Services' web site from December 10. 2018 through January 22, 2019. The
Department received two (2) proposals. The proposals were revlevired and scored by a team of
individuals with program specific knowledge. The two selected vendors were able to demonstrate within
their proposals, the ability to provide evidence-based strategies unique to the targeted communities they
will serve, as well as a readiness to ertgage in boundary-spanning leadership activities-outlined in the
grant proposal. Some of the activities the vendors will engage in include developing Community
Integration Teams (CITs), as well as the development and implementations of evidence-based programs
that increase parental protective factors. The knowledge based on science shows the impact that
adverse childhood expenences can have on a child and the Impact to their overall long-term health
outcomes. The Score Summary is attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of these contracts, the Department
has the option to extend contract services for up,to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and
Executive Council. .

The goal of these contracts is to provide services that strengthen and preserve families, prior to
entering the child welfare system, and implement a community-based approach to responding to the
needs families have through increasing 'protective factors' such as. parental fesilience, increasing social
connections, concrete supports in limes of need, knowledge of parenting and child development, and
increasing social and emotional competence. When present, these 'protective factors' can help to
mitigate risk and can increase health and overall well-being for families and children.

The following perforTnance> measures and objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of
the contracts;

Year 1: Performance Measures for Planning Period:

•  Every six (6) months. 90% of ClT membership will participate in training that
Includes Boundary Spanning Leadership (BSL) training workshops and evaluation
activities.

•  Every six (6) months... 90% of ClT membership will participate in evaluation
baseline and measurement studies such as surveys, focus groups and/or in-depth
interviews, as appropriate to project activities.

•  ClT members must attend 90% of coaching sessions.-

Year 2: Ongoing Implementation Efforts, which include, but are not limited to:

• . Tracking performance measures specific to the ClT multi-sectoral interventions.

•  Plan Do Study Act cycles for quality improvement.

•  Collecting and participating In evaluation activities Intended to result in:

o  Increased effectiveness of population based prevention.,

o  Increases in protective factors,

o Reductions in reports of child maltreatment.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, New Hampshire children
' and their families may not receive prevention activities within the targeted communities identined as

needing the greatest prevention supports and services.

Area served: Manchester and Winnipesauke Public Health Region.
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Source Of Funds: 25% Federal funds from CFDA 93.670 Administration for Children and Families.
FAIN 90CA185S and 75% General funds.

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds tsecome no longer available, additional General
Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

|ey A. Meyers '
C^missioner

Th« Dcpertntent 9f HeolUi and Human Struief' Mittien it to Join communitieM ond/amtlia
in providi'tg epporiunilitt for dlixent to rtchieut hialth and indtptndcnct.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scorlnfljheet

Community Cellalwretlene to
Strengthen and Preetrve Famltlee

RFP Nam*

RFP-3019-OPHS-23-COMMU

RFP Number

Bidder Name PaatlFill

Maaimum

Pdnta

Acnai

Points

Laket Region Community Service* 335 153

Manchester Community Health Center 335 tta

0 235 0

Reviewef Wame»

'• QPHS HeanftMgmi Qtc
Saran MoecMl. AdmMitrttor FamSy

'■ Sbcngih 4 ChHd Wefl-being inltlativt.
^^^Cwiditto^^YFXemmunn^r

3-Family Support
Elan Chau-Lucard. FInandaiAdmln.

*■ OPHS

S.
Amy BarqxasL Financial Admirtiatfator
II. OPHS



Suyta: Rn^3il|?-RPH5-2KQM?lTmi P^HTIfllimllY CaHnbomlorw to Strfmiihcii Iftd

Ijatssff- This agrccmeai and all oflu onachntMi shall becone public open cubnisston lo Governor and
Euculve Council for ipprovol Any inrormoilon (hu b privdc, coafidestisi or praprfeiary imni
be dearly identified to the csency oad sgrecd to In writini prior to sijinlng (be codntct

ACR£BMEKr
1>e Stale of How Hafflpshlrc and the Coaraeter hereby muuttlly eipTe as Mlorvr

GSNEBAL FROVISIOHS

IPEfOIFICATION.
l.l Stale Aseney Name
KN Oepcrtrnm of Health and Human Services

CocuractorHane

Lakes Regloo Cemauoky Scnrica

•Si

1.2 Slate Apocy AOOrei*
129 Pleasant Street

Concord; NH 03M1*21S7

1.4 Cooffaetflr Addrea

719 Nonh Main Street, Loeenla. NH 0)346

IJ ConmctorPhone
Number

60)-524-l81i

1.6 AccoQtd Number
O34eS4OO.«O}OIO.7D4T000O

05^495m42^2iQ10-295MI0b0

1.7 CompMoo Dale

Juk)0,302I

IS ContrectiDg orUccr for Siste Agency
Neihan D. White, Dircclof

1.8 Price Umiinion

S 800,000

1.10 State Agency Tdepbone Number
60).27l-9<)l

l.ll ContrectorSigaaiure 1.13 Nttjiyj^ygl^o^nt^etofSicnm^
PruldatarCEO .

1.13 AckoowkdscTncnl: Stalcof fj|-^ .CowByor

On 30i20/9bdbfeihe uadcrdsmd oflicer. penoaally appeared the person Idcmificd hblock I.l2,orioilifiao/tlT
pft»«n to bt the person whose name U ilgned In block 1.11, and ocknowlediPi thai *(he ettetuted thb document la il« cmacitv
indwaled in block 1.12. ^ '

1.13.1 Signature of Nooiry Public or faaice oftfat Pi

UluMc(^ (hf^jJiUJuA^
®™

jsau
1.13.2 Name end Title ofNotiryor ^5pi5^Ne^Pt5r

8tetfMgBHa!pah6a
ByO'iiiifiirtiiliiiiUuA^t^ppn

1.14 Suiee A^ySlgaa!we\ *- I. IS Nome oad ThleorState Agency Sigrutary

POorr'^b Hik
1.16 Amnovol by the N.H. D^oiment of AdnlntMo^ DivialaeorPenoond (If applicable)

Dtreeior, Oa:

1.17 Approval by the AaomeyCenotKFana. Substance ond Execution)

By On;

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Exceative Council (l/eppllcable)

By On:

PcgelofA

'0



FORM NUMBER P07 (veoton 5/8/lS)

Subject: Rn>»2Ql9-DPHS.23.CQMMU-0l Community CollabowioM to Strcnahen f>nd PfCKfve Familitf
Notice: This agreement ond all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and

Executive Council for approval. Any Inforniation thai is private, conndcniial or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the coritraci.

agreement

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION^
l.l State Agency Name •
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301.3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Lakes Region Community Services
1.4 Contractor Address

719 North Main Street, Laconia, NH 03246

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-524.8811

1.6 Account Number

O5-095-O42-42IO10-2958.ODOO

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 202)

1.8 Price Limiiaiion

S 800,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

I.IO State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1.1! Contractor Signature

Praldent & CEO.

CfiiltttuKnY

1.13 Acknowledgemeni: State of Ffl . County of ^
On f^CXjd 30i2Di^before thcundcrsigncd officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to M the person whose name is signed in block 1. 11, and acknowledged that s/hc executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.
1.13.1 Signature ofNotary Public or iujlict ufllic Puict

l.l 3.2 Name and Title of Noia^ or Juetrec^ the Paaco I®1S4ER, Nocanr Pubfc"
.  BaSofNMHsmpMrv
% OoRiTttlon OqjlQp Juy 10,2022

1.14 'State Ageiuy Signatu.

Date

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

(V\orrti>
1.16 Approval by thcN.H. Department of Administration, Diviskm of Personnel Ofoppf ''cot)te)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approvprty the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) 0/opp^'cab^f)

1.18 Approval by the Governor ond Executive Council 0/applicable)

By: On:
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1. employment OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State ), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, ideniified and more particularly described in the attached
EXKIBrr A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hcrcundcr, shall become cfrcctivc on the dale the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 C'Effective Data").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, alt Seivices performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become efTective. the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. conditional NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
fiinds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such fiinds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICErt>RlCE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment art ideniified and more particularly described in
EXHIBrr B which is incorporated herein by reference. .
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor In the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Comracior otha than the contract

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement lo the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In conneciion with the pcrformarKe of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal tuthoriiics
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited lo. civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxilia^
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive Information from, and convey
informaiion to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws,
6.2 During the term of this Agreemcm, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afTirmaiive action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United Slates, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Oppomrnity"). as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Ubor (41
C.F.R. Part 60). and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Slate of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenanis, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contraetor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
erriployee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

pnce.
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Agreemenl. This provision shall survive termination of (his
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting OfTicer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVEhTT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcrcundcr

(•'Event of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hcreunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition '
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give (he Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of lime, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreemenl and ordering that the portion of the contract price,
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Ccniracior.
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. data/access/confidentiauty/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, (he word "data" shall mean ell
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, chaxis, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether Hnished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with founds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
OfTicer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the dale of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the comraci price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The' form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Repon
described in the attached EXHCBTT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither on agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of Its
officers, employees, agents or members shall hove authority to
bind (he State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the Slate to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCOhrTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and

.  consent of (he State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written

'• notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the Suie, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered bythe
Stale, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its ofTicers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notvrilhstandingthe foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the Slate, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreemenl.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000,000per occurrence and S2,000,000
aggregate ; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the Slate of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The ContfBctor shall furnish to ihc Contraciing OfTicer
Idcnlified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificaic(s)
ofirwurot^cc for all insurance required under ihis Agreemcni.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OfTicer
Identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certific8ie(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each ccnificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer io
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of ihe policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 - A
("Workers' Compensation
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 28I-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Worken* Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable rcnewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and arc
incorporated herein by rtferencc. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Slate of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the pcfformarice of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof afler any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other parry
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Slates Post Office addressed to the parties at Ihc addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by art instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required ur>der (he circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the panics to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefil any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. BEADINCS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modily, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBrT C are incorporated herein by
rcfercTKC.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any stale or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in o number of counierpans, each of which shall
be deemed an criginal, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4 Jf)j^Contractor Initiate-**'*''^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit s detailed description of the language assistance
services they wiii provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1 3. Notwithstandir>g any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30. 2019. and the^ Department shall not be liable for
any payments for services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and until an.
appropriation for these services has been received from the stale legislature
and funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 biennia.

1.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Subrecipienl. in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. el seq.

1.5. The Contractor shall provide contracted services to families living in the
Winnipesaukee Regional Public Health Network, which includes:

1.5.1. Alton.

1.5.2. Bamstead.

1.5.3. Belmont.

1.5.4. Center Harbor.

1.5.5. Oanbury.

1.5.6. Franklin.

1.5.7. Gilford

1.5.8. Gilmanton.

1.5.9. Hill

1.5.10. Meredith.

1.5.11. New Hampton.

1.5.12. Northfield.

1.5.13. Laconia.

1.5.14. Sanbomton.

1.5.15. Tilton.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall develop Community Implementation Teams (CITs). which
may include, but are not limited to: ^

Litkta Community Sofvlcaa * Contractor ^
RFP.2019-0PHS-2JCOMMU-01 Pa^otofS Dola W l i^OI H



New Hampshire Deportment of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

Exhibit A

2.1.1. Evidence-based prevention programs. Including programs with
existlr>g Department supported services.

2.1.2. Court diversion and family court programs.

2.1.3. Programs that offer alternative dispositions for juveniles.

2.1.4. Community agencies and providers who serve families with children
up to eight years of age.

2.1.5. Public Health Networks.

2.1.6. Family Resource Centers.

2.1.7. Integrated Delivery Networks.

2.1.8. DHHS District Offices

2.2. The Contractor shall create, coordinate, administer and manage Community-
Implementations Teams (CIT) that:

' 2.2.1. Work with the Evalualor and , DHHS to complete and submit a
practice plan and a federal project plan. Participate In Plari Do Study
Act - Revise (PDSA-R) cycles to increase saturation and scale of
evidence-based prevention p.ractices.

2.2.2. Plan, coordinate, and Implement Boundary Spanning Leadership

2.2.3. Hire a Community Implementation Team Coordinator.

2.2.4. Purchase supporting materials

2.2.5. Provide on-slte face-to-face training to providers.

2.3. The Contractor shall utilize the results of the environmental scan and the needs
assessment (Section 2.9) in conjunction with Department Input, to provide
planning, technical assistance, and face-to-face training on targeted topics, as
determined by the Department, which may include, but are not limited to:

2.3.1. Evidence-based and/or evidence-informed parental education on:

2.3.1.1. Current impact of adverse childhood experiences

2.3.1.2. Baseline or foundational understanding of toxic stress levels
for families In the community and in the CIT sites.

2.3.1.3. Policies and programs that promote, serve and return
knowledge, behaviors and practices between parents and
children that:

2.3.1.3.1. Prevent abuse and neglect.

2.3.1.3.2. Strengthen positive parenting.

2.3.1.4. Programs that will assist families with Identifying and
addressing risk factors that could lead to contact with the
child welfare system.

2.3.1.5. Delivery of trauma-informed care across the continuum for
individuals and families with children up to 8 years of age.

LiliW Rofllon Community Sofvfctf ErfittU A Ccolrartor InJll
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Exhibit A

2.3.1.6. Strategies that support the needs of families who have had
involvemeni with the Division for Children, Youth and
Families resulting in unfounded allegation of abuse or
neglect with;

2.3.1.6.1. Reasonable concern.

2.3.1.6.2. Parental substance use.

2.3.1.6.3. Discovery of economic or social challenges.

2.3.1.6.4. Strategies for working with children impacted
by familial substance use disorder.

2.3.1.6.5. Training and strategies for supporting the
needs of young children and families from
various cultures and lariguages.

2.3.1.6.6. Training, coaching and implementation of
Boundary Spanning Leadership (SSL)
strategies.

2.4. The Contractor shall coordinate trainings with a variety of agencies, including
other CITs, to ensure trainings are developed, planned and aligned with
evidence-based services that are culturally and linguistically competent and
most appropriate for the target audience needs.

2.5. Contractor shall ensure that all training includes instruction and guidance
relating to safeguarding confidentiality of individually Identifiable or protected
health information, as required by state or federal law or regulations.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure services and supports offered to families in their
respective areas of service complement existing state programs.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure a GIT Coordinator is assigned job duties that
include, but are not limited to:

2.7.1. Working with team members to draft meeting agendas and meeting
notes.

2.7.2. Conducting local needs assessments.

2.7.3. Leading program-planning efforts.

2.7.4. Identifying and engaging new and existing community partners to
plan and strategiie implementation.

2.7.5. Representing the Contractor at statewide meetings.

2.7.6. Leading the development of a Practice Profile as it relates to
evaluation and service provision.

2.7.7. Facilitating, drafting, and finalizing CIT project work plan, timeline,
and logic model to align with DHHS project logic model and timeline.

2.7.8. Coordinating CIT data definition establishment and data collection
according to state and federal regulations.

2.8. The Contractor shall offer parenting education and economic support services
ubiizing evidence-based strategies that align with the Administration for

l^«R^lonCorwnuni:yS«vfce, Erf-Wl A Cor<n>ctor inllAn
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Children and Families (ACF) child abuse and neglect strategies including, but
not limited to strengthening protective factors, ensuring the services are
accessible, available to. and designed to target a diverse population, which
includes, but is not limited to:

2.6.1. Pregnant or parenting Individuals.

2.8.2. Individuals and all family types svith children up to eight (8) years of
age.

2.8.3. Caregivers, professionals, foster parents, grandparents.

2.9. The Contractor shall ensure the CIT conducts a needs
assessment/environmental scan to determine the training needs of the
organization that provide services to families. The Contractor shall ensure the
CIT Is able to: ''

2.9.1. Determine the extent to which professionals require training In:

2.9.1-.1. Adverse childhood experiences.

2.9.1.2. Toxic stress.

2.9.1.3. Trauma-informed care.

2.9.1.4. Substance use disorders (SUD).

2.9.2. Measure respondent capacity to identify and address risk factors
among family members that could result In contact with the child
welfare system.

2.9.3. Determine respondent ability to address the needs of young children
and families from various cultures and languages.

2.9.4. Inquire about (raining in particular evidence-based curricula.

2.10. The Contractor shall define strengths and gaps among service providers and
shall identify needs for training upon the completion and evaluation of a sun/ey.

2.11. The Contractor shall develop a roster of training opportunities for professionals
and parents that utilized evidence-based practices and programming with input
from the CIT and working groups.

2.12. The Contractor shall enlist the subject-matter expertise of CIT members and
other community partners to host training sessions that ensure accommodates
for the entire region. The Contractor shall:

2.12.1. Maintain a record of all trainers and ensure the trainers are qualified
to teach (heir respective courses.

2.12.2. Ensure that any education programs collecting PHI that are
delivered on-line or on a website meet NH DolT requirements.

2.12.3. Provide all materials, equipment, and physical space, as well as,
logistical and staff support for the services and prevention and
education programs delivered.

2.13. The Contractor shall ensure evidence-based, culturally and linguistically
competent, prevention-focused parental assistance programs are available
within the communities (Section 1.5) and are designed to:

Lakes RoQlon Commurtity Sar^ces EiN&lt A Contractor InlUl
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Exhibit A

2.13.1. Reduce child mallrealment.

2.13.2. Improve parent-child Interactions.

' 2.13.3. Improve skills to regulate behavior and cope adaptively.

2.13.4. Improve coordination of services and referrals for young families.

2.14. The Contractor shall ensure a variety of prevention services are available to
parents of children up to eight (8) years of age. which may Include, but are not
limited to:

t

2.14.1. Home visiting.

2.14.2. Parent education.

2.14.3. Family support services, including respite or crisis care.

2.15. The Contractor shall Integrate the Five Protective Factors into the prevention
services to promote healthy development and well-being of children through:

2.15.1. Parental resilience.

2.15.2. Knowledge of parenting and child development.

2.15.3. Social connections.

2.15.4. Concrete supports In times of need.

2.15.5. Social and emotional competence.

2.16.- The Contractor shall promote prevention and service programs through
outreach and mar1(etlr>9 In order to Increase parent and community awareness
of services maximizing:

2.16.1. Attendance to events for families with children up to eight (8) years
of age.

2.16.2. ̂  Attendance to professional development opportunities.

2.16.3. Awareness of community resources available in the state, region,
and nationally.

2.17. The Contractor shall ensure professionals are trained to support, advise, and
guide families by focusing on prevention and elimirtation of child abuse and
neglect by training providers on;

2.17.1. Period of Purple Crying;

2.17.2. Strengthening Families Approach.

2.18.. The Contractor shall utilize its current relationships In the community to
continue improving coordination of services and referrals.

2.19. The Contractor shall have a minimum of one representative acceptable to the
Department physically present at local and regional' meetings to provide
opportunities to build credibility and likeability among other providers In order
to ensure local and regional agencies are confident referring clients for support
and services.
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2.20. The Contractor shall Implement a Communily Outreach and Marketing plan
that ensures families throughout the region are aware of parental assistance
programs through mediums that include, but are not limited to;

2.20.1. Social Media • The Contractor shall develop posts that promote
evidence based parent support programs to target consumers and
providers.

2.20.2. Traditional Media - The Contractor shall develop press releases
announcing grant, programs, special events. Inserts in calendar
listings.

2.20.3. WebSite and Email - The Contractor shall create content to promote
'  programs on the website, biogs, and email distribution list.

•  X 2.20.4. Grassroots Outreach - The Contractor shall develop flyers and
submit to the Department for approval, upon approval the flyers shall
t>e distributed and posted at communlty-iased locations. The flyers
shall give credit to the Department for the funding.

2.20.5. Networking - The Contractor shall partner with community-based
providers to promote programs through their social media channels,
websites, email lists and program recipients.

2.21. The Contractor shall ensure ongoing implementation efforts which 'may
Include, but are not limited to:

2.21.1. Tracking performance measures specific to the CIT multi-sectoral
interventions.

2.21.2. POSA-R cycles for quality improvement.

2.21.3. Collecting and participating in evaluation activities Intended to result
In:

2.21.3.1. Increase of effectiveness of population based prevention.

2.21.3.2. Increase in protective factors.

2.21.3.3. Reduction in child maltreatment reports.

3. DATA TRACKING

3.1. The Coniractor shall maintain an Outcome Tracking System, as approved by
the Department, which shall be implemented during the second year of the
resulting contract.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure the Outcome Tracking System is utilized to
capture local performance metrics consistent with targeted prevention efforts
determined through the comprehensive planning process during the first year
of contracted service.s. The Contractor shall:

3.2.1. Provide a fully managed Information Technology (IT) department to
that Includes, but is not limited to:

3.2.1.1. Dedicated response team.

3.2.1.2. Cybersecurity;

L«k« Communfty S«Mc®9 erfiJWIA Contracter Irtltol;
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3.2.1.3. Dedicated response team Nvith knowledge of slate and
federal privacy laws;

3.2.2. Participate in . Plan Do Study Act -Revise (POSA-R) cycles to
increase saturation and scale of evidence*bdsed prevention
practice.

3.2.3. Disseminate and review data at regular intervals with community
partners for continuous quality improvement efforts, PDSA-R cycles,
and data-based decision efforts.

3.2.4. Track local data and monitor process and outcome Indicators
Involved in the 8SL method and CIT Impiementalron.

3.2.5. invite the evaluation team to attend CIT meetings in order to provide
training on the importance of the evaluation, specifics on data
collection and reporting.

3.3. The Contractor shall develop plans to share non-personally identifiable data
with the Department that includes, but is not limited to:

3.3.1. Pre-d.enned regional data deftnitlons.

3.3.2. Measures of success.

3.3.3. Indicators of success to inform shared outcome metrics.

3.3.4. Personal characteristics and experiences of participants.

3.4.' The Contractor shall work collaboratively under the direction of the
Department, with the State-identified Evaluation Contractor. This work shall
include, but is not limited to:

3.4.1. Facilitating cross-system data definition processes and managing a
shared-outcomes defining process and outcomes tracking system
which shall include, but is rtoX limited to:

3.4.1.1. Identification of Indicators of success to inform shared
outcome metrics within CIT.

3.4.1.2. Personal characteristics, challenges, barriers, and
experiences of parent and community organization
participants.

3.4.1.3. Sharing of pre-deftned regional data definitions.

3.4.1.4. Establishment of shared measures of success.

3.4.1.5. Establishment and implementation of data collection, data
sharing agreements, security, and monitoring procedures
standards, consistent with all slate and federal laws and
regulations relating to confidentiality, privacy and
information security.

3.4.1.6. Coordination of local data tracking and monitoring of
process and outcome Indicators Involved in the Boundary
Spanning Leadership (SSL) method and CIT
implementation.

tAkM Corrvnunlly S«rv1ce3 EjMMA Contrsctorlr
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3.4.1.7. Participate in Data Work Group Committee to contribute
feedback to the design and development of the Outcome
Tracking System. This irKludes. but Is not limited to:

3.4.1.8. Participatloi>- in outcomes tracking system training and
technical assistance.

3.4.1.9. Submission of Outcome Tracking System data at regularly
defined intervals for purpose of the program evaluation.

3 4 2 Explore, incorporate and document concepts, methods, population
and perfortnance-based data and tools that make cross-sectoral
work more successful and increase the value of collective

, leadership.

3.4.3. Conduct a needs ass^sment/environmental scan of services. CIT
child-abuse neglect prevention focus evidence-based practices,
training and technical assistance needs of community providers.

4. Reporting

4 1. The Contractor shall submit annual and interim reports on process and
outcome measures for each area under study for quality improvement and
recommendations. No personally identifiable data shall be irKluded In these
reports.

4 2. The Contractor, in conjunction with the CIT, shall complete and submit a
Practice Plan no later than ninety (90) days after the contract effective date.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of-9Q% of its CIT members participate
In BSL training.

5.2. The Contractor shall track two (2) phases of performance measurement;
5.2.1. Year 1: Performance Measures for Planning Period, which includes,

but is not limited to:

5.2.1.1. Every six (6) months, 90% of CIT membership will
participate in BSL training workshops and evaluation
activities.

5.2.1.2. Every six (6) months. 90% of CIT membership will
participate in evaluation baseline and measurement studies
such as surveys focus groups and/or In-depth interviews, as
appropriate to project activities.

5.2.1.3. CIT teams shall attend 90% of coaching sessions.

5.2.2. Year 2: The Contractor shall work with the Department to set
performance measures for Year 2, at the conclusion of Year 1.

5.3. The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan for any
performance measure not achieved to the Department.
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Method and Conditions Prpcedent to Payment

1. The State ehall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.6.
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement Is funded with Federal Funds from CFDA #93.670, Administration for
Children and Femillea. Federal Award ldentificatk>rt Numt>er (FAIN). 09OCA1856 and
Qeneral Funds.

3. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and/or future furtdlng.

4. Payment for aaid services shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1 .Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred
in the futfinment of this Agreement, end shall be In accordance with the approved
Una Item, as specified In Exhibits B-1, Budget through Exhibit B>3, Budget.

4.2.1116 Contractor shall submit an Invoice In a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (2CP) working day of each month, which Identifies and requests
reimbursement for authortzed expenses Incurred In the prior month.

4.3.The Contractor shall ensure the Invoice Is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department In order to Initiate payment

4.4. The State shaD make payment to the Contractor wllhln thirty (30) days of receipt of
each Invoice, subsequent to approval of the sut>mltted Invoice and If sufRdent funds
are available.

5. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activiUes reiated to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

6. The final Invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contrad
completion date specified In Fomo P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Comptetlon Date.

7. All invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services
29H8zen Drive

Concord. NH 03301

6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
Identlfted In Exhibit A, Scope of Services end In this Exhibit 6.

9. Nolwlthslandlng anything to the contrary'herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreemenl may be withheld. In whole or In part, In the event of non-
complldnce with any Federal or State law,.rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or If the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed In
accordance with the terms and condlUons of this agreement.
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Exhibits

10.Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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Exhibit C

wnei PROvistONS

Conlfactors Obligaltons: The Conirectof covenants artd agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Conireci shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance whh Federal and State Lawe: If the Coniraclcr is permitted to determine the ellgibHIty
of individuals such eligibility detenminalion shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
state lavrt. regulallons. orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Ootermlnatlon: Engibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose end shall be made and remade at such times as ere prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documonlation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Conuactor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereurKjer, which file shall include oD
information r>ecessary to support an eligibility determination and such other Information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with ail forms end documeniatlon
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that at) applicants for services hereunder. as vreil as
individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to afair
hearing In accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gretultlos or KIckbacko: The Contractor agrees that It Is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gretulfy or offer o1 employment on bchalf.of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the Stale in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed In Exhibit A of this
Contract. The Slate may terminate this Contract and any sub-coniracl or sub-agreement if it is
deiennined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwiihslanding anything to the conlfary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding. It is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred for
eny purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the. Effective Date of the Coniriect
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date OO'which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual Is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rale which reimburses the Contractor In excess of the Contractors costs, at a rale
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to Ineligible Individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If el any time during the term of ihis Contract or after receipt of the Fir«l
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to Ineligible Individuals
Of other third party funders. the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event now rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from eny future peyment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursemcntin

excess of costs;

ExNbH C - Sp*d«l Provisions Contractor
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7.3. Demand repaymcnl of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of ir>dividuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ell funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to eny individual who is found by the Department to bo ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: fwlAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

0. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the ellgibliily records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and ogrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8 1 Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing end reflecling ail costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performence of the Contract, end all
income received or coDected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said rec^s to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices vrhich sufficionlly and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which ere acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and origine) evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, Inventories, valuations of
In^ind conlflbulions. labor lime cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by ihe
Department.

0.2. Statistical Records: Stalislical. enrollment, anendance or visit records for each reapieni of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of senrices end all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

•  0.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
• Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annuol audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of Ihe
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared In accordance with the provision of
Office of Management arid Budget Circular A-133. 'Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations' and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to fir\ancldl compliar>ce audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuaniio
the Contract (or purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit LlaWlilies: In addition to and not in eny way in limitation of obl'igalions of the Contract, it is
understood and agreod by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for ony state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, ell payments made under the
Conlracl to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such en
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or coilecied
In connection with the performance of the sennces and the Contract shall be confidential end shell not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state bws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their officiel duties end for purposes
directly connected to the odmlnistration of the services and the Contract: end provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning e recipient for eny purpose not
directly connected with the admirvsirellon of the Department or the Contrector's responsibilities with

e«nvii

respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibilod except on written consent of the red^e^^
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shell survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
limes If requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written Interim financial reports containing a detailed descriptionof

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report end
containing such other Information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rale of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department

11.2. Finol Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department end shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals end objecu'ves staled in iheProposal
end other InfonmaUon required by the Department.

12. Comptotlon of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
max^um number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of (he price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract ere to be performed after the end of the temi of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as .
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research repcrls and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement

13.1. The preparation of (his (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approve) end Copyright Ownorship: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shaO have prior approval from OHHS before printing, production,
distn'buUon or use. The DHHS wQl retain copyright ownersNp for any and ail original materials
produced. Including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from OHHS.

15. Operation of Facllltlos: Compliance with Lawa and Rogulatione; In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with ail laws, orders and regulations of federal,
slate, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shell impose en order or duty upon (he contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any govenvnental license or
permit shall be requlr^ for the operation of the said faclEty or the performance of the said services,
(he Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with (he terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees (hat. during (he-term of this Contract the fao'iilies shall
comply with ell rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, end shall be in conformance with local tHjilding end zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employmeni Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contraclor will provide an Equal Emf^yment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for CM! Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR). If it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the redplenl receives $25,000 or more and has.
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more employees. It will maintain a current EEOP on file and sutimll an EEOP Cenificalion Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational Institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but ere required to submit e certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http^Avww.ojp.usdoi/about/ocr/pdfs/cerlpdf.

17 Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, end resulting agency guidance, nalionalorlgin
disciimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English profidency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1988 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

10. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract end employees worthing on this conb-act will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor em^yee whlsllaWower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by seciton 828 ol the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractof shall inform its employees In writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The (Contractor shall Insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). In all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Sul»cootroc1ore: OHMS recognizes that the ConUactor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility end accounlability for the fur>ction(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
funclion(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities ar^d reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same ccnlractuai
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractoris responsible to ensure subcontractor compiiDnce
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocalion wHI be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

oanvit
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1 g 4. Provide to OHHS an annual schedule idenlifying aD sot>contfactors. delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subconl/acts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Controct Definitions:

20 1 COSTS: Shell mean those direct and indirect items of expense detem)ined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal lews, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of HeaRh and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
•  form or forms required by the Department end containing a description of the services end/or

goods to be provided by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder. shall
rhean that period of lime or that specified activity determined by the Department end specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or slate laws, rogulalions. rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract. Ihe said reference shall be deemed to rheen
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from lime to lime.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

oonvia

emibliC-SpodalProvWona Comnwior WUc

PooiSotS Oflitt .5lloJi3,



New Hampshire Department of Health ar»d Human Services
Exhibit C-1 I

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P«37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, ell obligations of the State
hereunder. including without limitation, the continuance of payrnents. in v^hole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropflation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or olhervdse

'' modifies the opproprialion or osrailability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
Slate be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, icrmination or modification of appropriated or available furxJs. the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.-
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this AgrMment
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Accounl{s) kfantified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account
Number, or any other account In the event furxJs are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Terminallcn. Is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The Stale may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the .State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10 2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
terminalion. develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to. identifying the present end future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the Slate and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan Including, but not limltad to. any information or
data requested by the Stale related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but r>ot limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are tmnsitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
unlntemipted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10 5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the Uansition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed communications In its

•  Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to ̂ o (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

cuio»«eMo«it
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et scq.). and further agrees to have the Conlractor's representative, as jdenllfied in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certincation:

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUfrtAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implemenling Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1938 (Pub. L. 100-690. Titia V. Subtitle 0: 41 U.S.C, 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certiftcation by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees end sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
' regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees end sub-contractors) that is a State
may clecl to make one certificalion to the Department in each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certificalion. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when (he agency awards the grant. False
certificalion or violation of the certificaiion shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
terminolion of grants, or govemmeol vride suspension or debarmenl. Contractors using this fomi should
send it to;

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees thai the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controDed substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workptace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any availaWa drug counsoling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workptace:
1.3. Making H a requirement that each employee lo be engaged in the performance of the grant be

g'lven a copy of (he statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the emptoyer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in v^ing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employe© or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. Including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employeo was working, unless the Federal agency

EtfdM 0 - CettAcation rvganflng Oru|} Fraa Vendor iniilal
Worlcplaca Roqulrtments
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
.  identification numt>er(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
VS.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termirtation, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2.- Requiring such employee to participate satisfaciorily irj a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Tederal, Stale, or local health,
taw enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-fraa wodtpiace through
Implementation of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2, 1.3.1.4,1.5, end 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in. the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done In
connection vrith the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identifted here.

Vertdor Name;

Dale Name:Title: Rebecca L Bryant
Praldmr & CEO

ExMbll D-CcrtlScttlonregsrdtng Drug Frc« Vendor InlUt
WorkpUcs Requirements
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CERTIFtCATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Lew 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMEf^ OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMEffT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Progrems (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-0
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Stock Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Oevelopmeni Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated fiinds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influendng or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an offtcer or employee of Congress, or on employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreemenl (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other then Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
en officer or employee of Congress, or en employee of e Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreemenl (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sutj-
contractor). the undersigned shad complete end submit Standard Form LLL. (Dtsclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with Hs instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certKicalion be included in the award
document for sub-awards at ell tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this trarisaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil pcnatty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

Rcbccca L Bryant

cuOHHVMorn

frertdcnr & CEO

C6hmwity -
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identrfied in Section 1.3 of (he General Provisions agrees to comply with (he provisions of
Executive OfHce of the President, Executive Order 12&49 and AS CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, end further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Ger>eral Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing Qr>d submitting this proposal (conlraci). the prospective primary participant is providing (he

certification set oul below.

2. The inability of e ̂rson to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In deniel
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shaD submit an
explanation of why H cannot provide the certification. The certrficalion or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of (act upon vi/hich reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this pri^sal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,' 'debarred,* 'suspended,* 'ineligible,' 'lower tier covered
Irensaction,' 'participant,' 'person.* 'primary covered transaction,* 'principal,' 'proposal,* and
'voluntarily excluded.' as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the OefmKions and
Courage sections of the rules Implementing Executive Order 12S49: 45 CFR Pert 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be erdered Into, II shad not krwwingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that, it will include the
clause tilted 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all Bolichations for tower tier covered transactions.

8. A portlcipant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective partictpant in a
lower tier covered transection that it is r>ot debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A perticlpent may
decide the method end frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but Is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in (he foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

ExNbil f-CertlflcaUon Rcftfcnng OeCarmeni. Suspension Vendor IntU
And Other ResponsldUtty Matters
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction krK)wingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or defauQ.

primarv covered transactions
11. The prospective primary porticipant cenifies to the bast of its knowledge and belief, that it end Hs

prifKlpats:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a chminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, Slate or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State anirtrust
statutes or commission of embezztemeni, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; ' .

11.3. are r>ot presently indicted for otherwise chminaDy or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this applicatiorVproposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. Stale or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certrftcalion, such prospective participant shall attach en explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and subrnitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

denned in 45 CFR Part 76, certines to the best of its knowledge and beQef that it and its principals;
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participdtion In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitling this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled *Cerlrfication Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Inellgibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lov^r Tier Covered Transactions,* without modification in ell lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

gboln
Date Name:

Title: Rebecca L Bryant
Pycddent & CEO

. ••ItlCCI
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WTTH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of (he General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicabte
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of t968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohib'tts
recipients of federal funding under this statute from di8Crimlr>ating, either in employment practices or In
the delivery of services or ber^efits, on the besis of race, cokx, religion, ruitional origin, end sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equa) Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding ur>der this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disabSity. in regard to employmenl and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131 >34). which prohibKs
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilKles, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Oiscriminat'ion Act of 1675 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activilies receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Jusfce Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighbortiood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment (or FaHh-Based
Organizations); and Whislleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Conlract Employee Whlstlebtovrcr Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificBte set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debanaent.

EjtfitoilG
Vendor tnitlei
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Stale administratrve agency makes a rmding of
discriminelion after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, cotor. religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient wID forward e copy of the Hnding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division wKhin the Departmenl of Health end Human Services, and
to the Oeparln>cnt of Health and Hunnan Services Offce of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

\. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name:

KebccaL Bryant
Strident dc <Z0

^  lin'

EiNbliG
Vendor muen
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTiFICATiQN REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facilily owned or leased or
contrwted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 16, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through Slate or local govcmmenls. by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Fellure
to comply with the provisions of the lew may result in the imposition of a elvii monetary penalty of up to
S1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative 88 Idenlffied in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following f
cerliftcation;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
an applicable provisions of Public Law 10W27. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name;

Date Name:
Tilie: Rebecca L Bryant

Pretldent &; CEO

SUftCK

ExNblt H - CcdlficaOon Regarding Vendor irVUab
Env<ronmer«ii Tobscco Smoke <7 I in
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Ver^dor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identiriable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered Entity'
shell mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health end Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

1

c. 'Covered Entity' has the meaning given such-term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set' shall have the same nteaning as the term 'designated record set*
in45CFRSection 164.501.

e. 'Data Aagreoation* shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.601.

f. 'Health Care Qoerations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term 'individuar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR SecUon 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Paris 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected hcallh
information* in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. A/^

V20I4 exN&m Vandof
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. 'Required bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law* in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. end amendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate. Including but not limited to all .
its directors, officers, employees and.agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the f^rivacy arvd Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (il) an agreement from such thiid party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first'notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busin^s^

3/2014 EihUtl Vendor inh
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall -i.nclude, but riot be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identificatijon;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
b The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its Intemal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behaff of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and ■
Security Rule.

0. Business Associate shall require ell of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intend^ business associates, who will be receivir

3/2014 £j(Wl I vendor Irt;
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Now Hampshire Department of Health end Human Services

Exhibit!

pursuant to this Agreerttent. with rights of enforcement and Indemniricalion from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

1. Within ftve (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determif>e
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirerrients under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its

, obligations under 45 CFR Section 164'.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Infonnation related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Individuars request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othenwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to tho^
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business^ ̂
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit i

Associate maintains such PHI. if Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Oblioations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitdtion(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance vwlh 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the

. alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatcfv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to (he PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/20(4 EiNblll Vendor (nil
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Now Hampshire Dopartment of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

SeoreQation. If any (erm or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destnjctlon of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) (. the
defense ar>d indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P'37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services ^ ea'ion 5vr\J^ces

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized '

Lt£>A
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Represei^SttfiffSff j <

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Title of Authorized Representative

S\Zo\
Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDINQ ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountabilily and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime ewardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Pert 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) musi report the foDowing information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the enlrty
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS d)
10. Total compensation and narhes of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, end those
revenues are greaterthan $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.-
The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Lew 109-262 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the followfng Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with aD applicabte provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountabilily and Transparency Act. .

Vendor Name:

Date Name:
TWe; i^cbccca L Bryartt

President tc CEO

CSi'iAiwrnr
itl'ZCll

E;e^il J-CeiUActtlonReovdinolheFederslFundlrtg Vendcw InftlxU
AecountabK#yAndTf8f«p«rtftcyAcJ(FFATA)Compflance Cl3f\ll0
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The OUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracls. subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrsnts, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to above is NO. stop here

If the answer to ni above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed urxJer section 13(d) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (IS U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to d3 above Is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names end compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization ere as follows:

Name;.

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUO1HV1107O
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document;

1. 'Breach* means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally IdentlfiatDle
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information' or 'Confidential Data' means all confidential Information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal Information including without lirfiitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health -Information and
Personalty Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and a!) information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
slate or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but Is not limited to
Protect^ Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and conHdential information.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations.promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident* means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
rirmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

VS.Ustiipoaio I(y09/1B EjMUIK Coni/vctorUAb
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mall, all of which may have the polential to put.the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the Stale of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Stale, to transmit) will be considered an open
network'and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted Pi, PFi,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or 'PI') means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning -as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103:

11. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected HeaUh Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that Is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Starvjards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Infonnation
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees and agents^.must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

SecuUy Requlrtnwrt#
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Exhibit K

OHMS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the tiasis that it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DBMS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS ratifies the Contractor that OHMS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose Of inspecting to confirm compliance vvith the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the Internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also krxDwn as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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OHMS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data v^H be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless .devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor vrill have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAd^P/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers arwd devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyvrare. and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

VS.UstupdJis itfOtflS EiMbltK Controdor
DHHS Inkinnation

S«art^ ReqUiwenta ir\ \ \ Q
DatflJ \J^\ n



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

OHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusioivdetection and rirewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

6. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Conndentiai Information on its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely -disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and virill
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing Slate of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and' media
sanitizalion. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 600-88. Rev' 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The wrihen certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also krrawn as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information llfecyde. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (I.e., tape. disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authenticalion and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Infoimation
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact Slate of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monllbring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and compfy with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If (he Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnefabillties that may

'  occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion wilh agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Staie'of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtair>ed from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope, of requirements applicable to federal agencies, induding,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized -use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/ind0x.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PH), PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Conndential Information received urxter this Contract artd individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Conridentlal Data. Including any
derivative files containing personally Idenliflabie Information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section iV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

1. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onslte Inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Conridential Data
is disposed of In accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Slate's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notvrilhstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how (he (Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to incidents; and

vs. Ustupdst* 1<V06/16 EtfilbltK Controctof tnltla
DHHS infonnaUon '

S«cu(1ly ApquErvnent)
Pags 8 o( 9 Ost*diojli



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

OHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. If so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pt must be addressed and reported, as
applicable. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPrlvacyOfficer@dhh$.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSlnformationSecurilyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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